
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room, 1212 George Jenkins Blvd. 
Wednesday, August 08, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

Call to Order Action Required 

1. Approval of the July 11, 2018 LAMTD Board Minutes Approval 

2. Public Comments TBD 

3. GEM Award / Steve Schaible None 

4. Colton Larson Feature / David Walters None 

5. Finance / David Persaud
a. Transit Advertising - Revenue Contract Award Approval 
b. FY 2018 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 5339(b) Buses and

Bus Facilities Application Approval 
c. LAMTD Financials None 
d. PCTS Financials None 
e. LAMTD Proposed Operating and Capital Budget

FY 2018-19 Budget Approval 

6. Progress Report for the Polk Transit Development Plan / Diane Slaybaugh   Approval

7. Legal / Tim Darby
a. Public Purpose Conveyance to Citrus Connection Approval 
b. LAMTD CRA Agreement Approval 
c. South Eastern University Service Agreement Approval 

8. Operations / Bill Knieriem
a. Route Changes None 

9. Human Resources / Steve Schaible
a. Reclassification of Terminal Coordinators to Terminal Safety Officers None

10. Executive Director Report / Tom Phillips
a. Agency Update(s) None 

11. Executive Informational Summary / Tom Phillips
a. July Calendar None 
b. Ridership and UAP Update None 

12. Other Business TBD 

Adjournment 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AUGUST 08, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM #1 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Approval of the July 11, 2018 LAMTD Board Minutes 
 
Presenter: James Phillips 
  
Recommended  
Action: Board approval of the July 11, 2018 LAMTD Board 

Minutes 
    
 
Attachments: June 13, 2018 LAMTD Board Minutes 
   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 
 
 

Directors: 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey III 
Polk County Commissioner John Hall 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Michael Dunn  
City of Lakeland Commissioner Phillip Walker  
City of Lakeland Mayor Bill Mutz  

 
Executive Director: Tom Phillips  
Executive Assistant: James Phillips  
 
 
 

Call to Order 
8:30 a.m. By Chairman Phillip Walker 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes 
Approval request for the approval of the January 10, 2018 LAMTD Board of Director meeting minutes. 

 
“Approval of January 10, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes” 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
        

Agenda Item #2 – Public Comments  
   None 
 

Agenda Item #3 – Lake Morton Plaza Fire Evacuation 
   Video highlighting the Lake Morton plaza fire evacuation. 
 

Agenda Item #4 – Executive Director 
a .  P r o p o s a l  f o r  m u n i c i p a l i t i e s  t o  o f f e r  m a i n t e n a n c e  o f  b u s  s t o p s  a n d  

s h e l t e r s  i n  f a v o r  o f  a  1 %  c r e d i t  a t  t h e  e n d  o f  t h e  f i s c a l  y e a r .  
 

“Approval to continue discussions about 1% credit” 
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Bill Mutz 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 

Agenda Item #5 - Finance / David Persaud, CFO 
David Persaud, CFO presented to the Board the items listed below: 
a) Proposed FY 2017-18 Millage Rate / Certificate of Taxable Value and Set Public Hearings for FY 2018-19 

Millage Rate and Budget 
Recommend approval of the proposed aggregate millage rate of .5000 mills and for the proposed FY 2018-
19 Millage and Budget Public Hearings. 
 
Millage: 
FY 2017-18 Proposed Millage rate   .5000 
 
FY 2017-18 Current Year Aggregate  .4663 
Rolled-Back-Rate 
 
Current year proposed rate as a percent  7.23% 
Change of Rolled-Back-Rate 
 
The DR-420, Certification of Taxable Value, is due to the Property Appraiser by Friday, August 3, 2018. A 
copy of the  
DR-420 Certificate of Taxable Value is attached using the maximum allowable millage rate of .5000, the 
current rate of 
.5000 and the aggregate rolled back rate of .4663. 
 
Public Hearings: 
First Public Hearing for FY 2017-18 Millage Rate and FY 2018-19 Budget: Wednesday, September 5, 2018, 
at 5:01PM at Lakeland City Hall, City Commission Conference Room, 228 S. Massachusetts Ave., Lakeland. 
 
Second Public Hearing (Final) FY 2017-18 Millage Rate and FY 2018-19 Budget: Wednesday, September 19, 
2018 at 5:01PM at Lakeland City Hall, City Commission 
Conference Room, 228 S. Massachusetts Ave., Lakeland. 
 

“Approval of proposed aggregate millage rate of .5000 mills and for the proposed FY 
2018-19 Millage and Budget Public Hearings.” 
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Bill Mutz 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 
b) LAMTD Financials 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date May 31, 2018 

FY 2017-2018 
Year to Date May 31, 2018 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 67% $6,918,000 $6,888,512 100% $10.4 Million 
Expenses YTD 67% $6,918,000 $6,009,912 87% $10.4 Million 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through May 31, 2018 totaled $6.9 million or 100% of the YTD 
budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $447,390 or 100% of budgeted revenues through May 31, 2018.  
 

• Contract revenues totaled $97,380 or 75 % of the budgeted revenues for UAP (Universal Access 
Passes).  
 

• Other Contract Revenues totaled $133,551 or 68% of the budget for RAMCO and GEICO. RAMCO 
payment of $93,000  
received and GEICO Agreement is terminated in December 2017. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect revenue of $4.3 million or 99% of the Tax Levy.  The total budgeted revenues 
are $4.382 million. Only 95% of the taxes are budgeted by State Law. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments 
are as follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property 
taxes by       May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.5 million is being billed quarterly.  These grants are on a cash basis 
which mean the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance. The year-to-date 
revenues totaled $126,813. 

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash 

basis which means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  
Since most of the grant funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant 
reimbursement is received at the end of the fiscal year after State funds are recognized. The year-to-
date revenues totaled $1.1 million. 

 
• In March 2018, the FTA has approved drawing 50% of the FTA Operating Grants and then the 

remaining 50% was released. The District has begun the draws for the grants. 
 

• Advertising income totaled $94,240 over the budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue totaled $285,330 and is in line with budget. 
 

• The other revenues are within the budget for fixed and variable costs with no significant deviation. 
 

 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date May 31, 2018 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

FY 2017-2018 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through May 31, 2018 totaled $6.0 million or 87% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 64% of the FY 2017-2018 budget.  As of May 31, 2018, these expenses 
totaled $4.09 million or 93% of the budget of $4.4 million and is under budget. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $200,310 of the YTD budget; a favorable 

variance. 
 

• Other services expenses totaled $84,864 of the YTD budget, over budget due to cost for temporary 
employees in Finance- budgeted in salaries account.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $357,894 YTD, under budget.  

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $541,795 over budget by $70,328. This unfavorable variance is due to 

removing the obsolete inventory totaling $197,648. This is due to several buses (aged 1999-2008) that 
have been replaced.  The obsolete parts were auctioned for $27,500. 

 
• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are under budget a favorable variance. 

 
• Misc. expense and office expense are under budget. 

 
• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments over budget, since payments are 

quarterly and annually. The overage of $46,000 is due to the Property Tax Commission. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through May 31, 2018 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through May 31st the financials reflect a favorable 
actual variance of $.9 million with 67% of the fiscal year.  

 
 

 
 
* Total 10.04%, LAMTD 14.80%, PCTS 2.26% 
 

 STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 9/30/17 9/30/16             9/30/15             9/30/14             9/30/13             
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)         10.04% 13.95% 25.50% 23.08% 25.16% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $106.94 $104.76 $89.45 $86.29 $83.84 
3.  Revenue Hours                                           142,189 139,228 103,550 117,008 116,422 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                              $834,971 $757,485 $847,360 $1,316,739 $1,367,289 
5.  Ridership                                                   1,346,211 1,393,620 1,424,965 1,647,010 1,638,470 

* 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
c) PCTS Financials 
 

 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
     Polk County Transit Contract 
              Month of May 31, 2018 
                      Year to Date Report 
              Percent of FY Reported (67%) 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $3.7 million or 99% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The FTA grant drawdown reflects $.81 million or 67% of the grants. 
 Fare Revenues totaled $103,470 or 125% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The Polk County (City Contributions Fair Share) totaled $335,540. 
 The County funding is designed to reflect the incremental payments for the 

budgeted grants match totaling $1.63 million through May 31, 2018. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $3.5 million or 94% of the year-to-date 

budget.  
 Salaries and wages totaled $2.1 million or 88% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $.84 million or 84% of the YTD Budget. 
 The contract services are for contractual cost for the Lynx contractual services 

totaled $607,000 over budget by 54%. The District is evaluating the increase in 
services that contributed to this expense with appropriate action to be taken. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 
 

 
d) Ultra-Low Sulfur Diesel Fuel (Bulk Fuel) and Regular Unleaded 87 Octane Gasoline 
 

 On May 7, 2018 the District entered into a consortium purchase with 
Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority (PSTA), City of St. Petersburg 
(COSP), Hillsborough Transit Authority (HART), Hillsborough County 
Board of County Commissioners (HCBOCC), and the Polk County 
Board of County Commissioners (PCBOCC) for the purchase of No. 2 
Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel Fuel and Regular Unleaded 87 Octane 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

Gasoline.  An Invitation for Bid (IFB), #30624, was issued by HART, 
legally advertised and publicly posted on their website. 
 
Twenty-four (24) firms received notification of the posting, with eight 
(8) timely offers received. 
 
• Of the bids submitted for diesel fuel with transport truck deliveries 
(7,500 gallons) the firm of Mansfield Oil Company has been found to 
be a responsive responsible firm offering the best price at a rate of 
<$0.0040> per gallon, under the OPIS (Oil Price Index Service) rack 
average. This price is <$0.0019> lower than previously paid under the 
HART Fuel Consortium. 
 
• Of the bids submitted for unleaded fuel with tank wagon deliveries 
(500 up to 4,000 gallons) the firm of Palmdale Oil Company has been 
found to be a responsive responsible firm offering the best price at a 
rate of $0.1075 per gallon, over the OPIS (Oil Price Index Service) rack 
average. This price is $0.0125 over that previously paid under the 
HART Fuel Consortium. 

 
 
“Approval to enter a consortium with Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority (PSTA), City of St. Petersburg (COSP), 
Hillsborough Transit Authority (HART), Hillsborough County Board of County Commissioners (HCBOCC), and 
the Polk County Board of County Commissioners (PCBOCC)” 

1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Michael Dunn 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 
e)  FDOT Park and Ride Grant Application and Resolution 18-05 

 
The State Park and Ride Program under FDOT provides funding for the installation of park and ride facilities. 
This current year’s application is for the construction of restrooms, an electric car charging station, ADA 
compliant water fountain, bike lockers, and an aluminum awning. Total amount of application is $161,998. 
This project is subjected to a 50/50 match requirement in local funds. 
 

“Approval of resolution grant submission and subsequent award)” 
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Michael Dunn 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

f)  FY 2018-19 CTD agreement between the District and Polk County TPO for planning services.   
 
The State Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged administers the State Transportation 
Disadvantaged Trust Fund. The primary purpose of the trust fund is to provide transportation for 
transportation disadvantaged county residents who have no other means of transportation or are not 
sponsored for that need by any other available funding source. This is a one-time agreement since the 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

planning funds were inadvertently remitted to the District. This agreement will provide the framework for the 
CTD to remit funds to the District and the District remitting funds to the Polk County TPO 

                                   
“Approval of the agreement between the District and the Polk County Transportation Planning Organization 
(TPO) for the provision of planning services.” 

1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Michael Dunn 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 – Legal / Tim Darby  
a. Peace River Center Contract Renewal 

Upon approval the agreement shall commence on June 1, 2018, through and including June 30, 2019 and 
to automatically renew for two more years. The District will allow up to 300 participants being served by 
PRC in programs and services. The monthly rate to be charges to PRC by the District for the transit service 
will be $750.00. 

 
  “Approval of the renewal of the Peace River Center Universal Access Program” 

1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Michael Dunn 
 

         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
b.  PACE Center for Girls Service Agreement 

 Upon approval the agreement shall commence on July 1, 2018, through and including June 30, 2019 
and to automatically renew for four more years. The District will allow up to 300 participants being 
served by PRC in programs and services. The monthly rate to be charges to PRC by the District for the 
transit service will be $250.00.  

  “Approval of the renewal of the PACE Center for Girls Universal Access Program” 
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Michael Dunn 

 
         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

c. Resolution for the 4175 S. Pipkin Rd Project 
A resolution relating to district boundaries; approving an enlargement of the district; including within the 
district certain territory in Lakeland, Florida, located at 4175 s. Pipkin road, Lakeland, Florida 33811; 
finding approval by the property owner; finding compliance with the county ordinance; providing an 
effective date. 
  
“Approval of the resolution of the 4175 S. Pipkin Rd Project” 

1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Michael Dunn 
 

         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #7 – Quarterly Ridership Report / Bill Knieriem 
TSI ridership data for first and second qtrs of 2018 for the periods of Jan-Mar and Apr -June.   
(see attached) 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #8 – Executive Director Report / Tom Phillips   
a. Agency Update(s) 

a. Thankful for the Ledger and their comments with Citrus Connections and Eagle Lake 
b. Continue with Citrus Connections TV 
c. Thanked Joe Cheney for looking into new buses, possible vendors coming later this month. 
d. Thanked the Sales group for coming through with Fort Mead 
e. Introduced James Phillips, no relation, as the new executive assistant point of contact 
f. T Bardic Resignation 
g. Publix continues to ask for Citrus Connections to remove/relocate the stop in from of the Lake 

Miriam complex 
 
Agenda Item #9 – Executive Informational Summary / Tom Phillips 
 

a. June Executive Calendar – (see attached) 
 
 

b. Monthly UAP and Ridership data – (see attached) 
 

 
Agenda Item #10 – Other Business 
None at this time 

 
 
 

Adjournment at 9:18 a.m. 
 

Approved this 8th day of August, 2018. 
 
 
 
 

  

Chairman – City Commissioner Phillip Walker Minutes Recorder – James Phillips 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AUGUST 08, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Public Comments 
 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: TBD 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AUGUST 08, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: GEM Award 
 
 
Presenter: Steve Schaible 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: Video presentation telling the story of fixed route 

Supervisor Caroline Hird. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 8, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM 4 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Colton Larson Feature 
 
Presenter: David Walters 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
 
Summary: Video presentation telling the story of fixed route rider 

Colton Larson 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

August 8, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM # 5a 

 

Agenda Item: Transit Advertising - Revenue Contract Award 
  

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO  
 

Recommended      Recommend Board approve award of Contract 18-015 for 
Action:              Transit Advertising to the highest revenue generating, 

responsive, responsible bidder, for a Guaranteed 
Minimum Revenue of $132,000 annually. 

Anticipated 
Funding Source:  Revenue Generating 
 
Summary:           On March 13, 2018, the District issued a Request for 

Proposal (RFP) #18-015, for qualified firms interested in 
providing Transit Advertising Services that will meet the 
needs of the District. Offer submittals were due June 22, 
2018 at 2:00 P.M. The agreement will be for a three-year 
base term with two additional one-year option terms. 

 
 The solicitation was provided to the District’s registered 

vendors and state certified Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise (DBE) and/or Minority Business 
Enterprise (MBE). Forty-three firms received notification 
of the posting, of which 33% were DBE firms found 
through the BizNet website. 

 
Three timely offers were received and reviewed for 
responsiveness. One firm was found nonresponsive during 
the review process. The two remaining offers were then 
reviewed for expectations taken to the solicitation, finding 
none, they were evaluated for technical capacity by an 
evaluation committee of 5 persons.  
 
Upon the conclusion of both the technical and fee/revenue 
evaluation, it was found that the second ranked firm had 
taken exception to the solicitation by modifying the 
password protected fee/revenue schedule. The 
modification would ultimately alter the statement of work, 
revenue structure, and award methodology resulting in 
that firm being found nonresponsive.  
 



AGENDA ITEM # 5a – CONT. 

LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting – June 13, 2012 

A responsibility review was then conducted on the highest 
ranked firm, to ensure the firm was experienced, 
adequately staffed, and understood the requirements as 
outlined in the solicitation.  
 
The review resulted in the firm of Blackjack Media Group, 
Inc. being recommended for award with a Guaranteed 
Minimum Revenue of $132,000 for the first year, increase 
an average of 8% each year thereafter.  
 

  

Attachments:        Contract Award Analysis 
 Single Bid Findings and Determinations 
 Nonresponsive Findings and Determinations – Vector Media 
 Nonresponsive Findings and Determinations – Tinsley Creative 
 Tinsley Creative Dispute 
 LAMTD’s Dispute Response 
  
 

















LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 8, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM# 5b 

Agenda Item: FY 2018 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
5339(b) Buses and Bus Facilities Application and 
corresponding resolution.   

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO 

Recommended 
Action: Recommend approval of resolution, grant submission and 

subsequent award 

Summary: The purpose of the Bus and Bus Infrastructure Program is 
to assist in the financing of buses and bus facilities 
capital projects, including replacing, rehabilitating, 
purchasing or leasing buses or related equipment, and 
rehabilitating, purchasing, constructing or leasing bus-
related facilities. The application for these funds consists 
of $1,891,563 from the Federal Transit Administration 
with matching funds of $472,891 provided by the Florida 
Department of Transportation in the form of 
Transportation Development Credits. These funds will be 
utilized to construct new bus parking lots, resurface 
employee parking lots, replace the roof on the bus wash 
facility and the construction of a storage shed.  

Funding: Funding provided by the Federal Transit Administration 
totals $1,891,563 with a match requirement of $472,891 
provided from the Florida Department of Transportation 
in the form of Transportation Development Credits for a 
total of $2,364,454 with no direct cost to the district.  

Attachments: Resolution 



 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 

1212 George Jenkins Blvd / Lakeland, FL  33815 / (863) 688-7433 / Fax (863) 683-1341 
www.polktransit.org  / www.findmyroutes.com    

 
 
 
 
 

 

RESOLUTION # 18-07 
 
 
A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District authorizing the 
signing and submission of a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to 
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and the acceptance of a grant award from the 
Department. 
 
 WHEREAS, Lakeland Area Mass Transit District has the authority to apply 
for and accept grant awards made by the Florida Department of Transportation as 
authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit Administration 
Act of 1964, as amended; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Lakeland Area 
Mass Transit District: 
 

1. This resolution applies to 5339(b) Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities 
Infrastructure Investment Program, 

2. The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and/or 
assurances to the FTA is approved 

3. The Executive Director, Tom Phillips, is authorized to sign the application, 
accept a grant award, and enter into, modify or terminate any subsequent award 
contract or agreement related to this grant application unless specifically 
rescinded. 

 
DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS August 8, 2018 
 
 

    By: _______________________________ 
     (Signature) 
 
    Phillip Walker, Chairman of the Board 
    Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ (seal) 
 

http://www.polktransit.org/
http://www.findmyroutes.com/


LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AUGUST 8, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM #5c 

 
 
Agenda Item: June 30, 2018 LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 
 FY 2017-18 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date June 30, 2018 

FY 2017-2018 
Year to Date June 30, 2018 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 75% $7,782,780 $7,154,800 92% $10.4 Million 
Expenses YTD 75% $7,782,780 $6,680,730 86% $10.4 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through June 30, 2018 totaled $7.2 million or 92% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $497,660 or 99% of budgeted revenues through June 30, 2018.  
 

• Contract revenues totaled $109,000 or 75 % of the budgeted revenues for UAP (Universal Access Passes).  
 

• Other Contract Revenues totaled $133,551 or 61% of the budget for RAMCO and GEICO. RAMCO payment of 
$93,000  
received and GEICO Agreement is terminated in December 2017. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect revenue of $4.45 million or 101% of the Tax Levy.  The total budgeted revenues are 
$4.382 million. Only 95% of the taxes are budgeted by State Law. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.5 million is being billed quarterly.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean 
the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance. The year-to-date revenues totaled $126,813. 

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 

means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized. The year-to-date revenues totaled $1.1 million. 
 

• In March 2018, the FTA has approved drawing 50% of the FTA Operating Grants and then the remaining 50% 
was released. The District has begun the draws for the grants. 
 

• Advertising income totaled $109,000 over the budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue totaled $321,000 and is in line with budget. 
 

• The other revenues are within the budget for fixed and variable costs with no significant deviation. 
 



 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date June30, 2018 

FY 2017-2018 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through June 30, 2018 totaled $6.7 million or 86% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 64% of the FY 2017-2018 budget.  As of June 30, 2018, these expenses totaled 
$4.57 million or 92% of the budget of $4.4 million and is under budget. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $206,790 of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $88,530 of the YTD budget, over budget due to cost for temporary employees in 

Finance- budgeted in salaries account.  
 

• Fuel expenses totaled $413,620 YTD, under budget.  
 

• Materials and supplies totaled $582,940 over budget by $52,540. This unfavorable variance is due to removing 
the obsolete inventory totaling $197,648. This is due to several buses (aged 1999-2008) that have been 
replaced.  The obsolete parts were auctioned for $27,500. 

 
• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are under budget a favorable variance. 

 

• Misc. expense and office expense are under budget. 
 

• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments over budget, since payments are quarterly and 
annually. The overage of $52,000 is due to the Property Tax Commission. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through June 30, 2018 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through June 30th  the financials reflect a favorable actual 
variance of $.48 million with 75% of the fiscal year.  

 
 

 
 
* Total 10.04%, LAMTD 14.80%, PCTS 2.26% 

 STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 9/30/17 9/30/16             9/30/15             9/30/14             9/30/13             
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)       10.04% 13.95% 25.50% 23.08% 25.16% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $106.94 $104.76 $89.45 $86.29 $83.84 
3.  Revenue Hours                                           142,189 139,228 103,550 117,008 116,422 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $834,971 $757,485 $847,360 $1,316,739 $1,367,289 
5.  Ridership                                                   1,346,211 1,393,620 1,424,965 1,647,010 1,638,470 

* 

 



MONTH OF  (SoRE 6/3/15)

 

$'s % $'s %
REVENUES: Account

R4 Farebox/Pass Sales 50,277$               55,833$               (5,557)$               -10% 497,665$             502,500$             (4,835)$               -1% 670,000$             
R6 Contract Income (UAP) 11,621$               16,250$               (4,629)$               -28% 108,999$             146,250$             (37,251)$              -25% 195,000$             
R3 Other Contract Revenue -$                        24,453$               (24,453)$              -100% 133,551$             220,080$             (86,529)$              -39% 293,440$             
R5 Miscellaneous Income                    6,252$                 1,050$                 5,202$                 495% 41,834$               9,450$                 32,384$               343% 12,600$               
R7 Advertising Revenue                     14,631$               11,000$               3,631$                 33% 108,872$             99,000$               9,872$                 10% 132,000$             
R8 Investment/Interest Income (net) 12,652$               1,667$                 10,985$               659% 95,656$               15,000$               80,656$               538% 20,000$               
R9 Ad Valorum Income, net 106,442$             365,197$             (258,755)$            -71% 4,447,653$          3,286,770$          1,160,883$          35% 4,382,360$          
R10 FDOT Operating Grant -$                        124,429$             (124,429)$            -100% 126,813$             1,119,863$          (993,049)$            -89% 1,493,150$          
R11 Federal Operating Grant -$                        212,804$             (212,804)$            -100% 1,118,076$          1,915,238$          (797,162)$            -42% 2,553,650$          
R13 Cost Recovery 28,747$               417$                    28,330$               6799% 75,574$               3,750$                 71,824$               1915% 5,000$                 
R17 City of Lakeland -$                        12,583$               (12,583)$              -100% 79,106$               113,250$             (34,144)$              -30% 151,000$             
R1 Bartow Express -$                        3,274$                 (3,274)$               -100% -$                        29,468$               (29,468)$              -100% 39,290$               
R2 PCTS - Support Cost Reimb. 35,667$               35,796$               (129)$                  0% 321,000$             322,163$             (1,163)$               0% 429,550$             

Reserve
TOTAL REVENUES 266,287$             864,753$             (598,467)$            -69% 7,154,799$          7,782,780$          (627,981)$            -8% 10,377,040$        

ELIGIBLE EXPENSES:
1 Salaries 323,064$             370,663$             (47,600)$              -13% 3,126,330$          3,335,970$          (209,640)$            -6% 4,447,960$          
2 Employee Benefits 158,827$             179,606$             (20,779)$              -12% 1,443,677$          1,616,453$          (172,775)$            -11% 2,155,270$          
3 Advertising Fees (635)$                  1,325$                 (1,960)$               -148% 7,311$                 11,925$               (4,614)$               -39% 15,900$               
4 Professional & Techinical Ser 6,483$                 30,792$               (24,309)$              -79% 206,793$             277,125$             (70,332)$              -25% 369,500$             
5 Contract Maintenance Services 12,186$               8,800$                 3,386$                 38% 69,337$               79,200$               (9,863)$               -12% 105,600$             
6 Other Services 3,665$                 4,446$                 (781)$                  -18% 88,529$               40,013$               48,517$               121% 53,350$               
7 Fuel & Lubricants 55,727$               50,275$               5,452$                 11% 413,620$             452,475$             (38,855)$              -9% 603,300$             
8 Freight 137$                    800$                    (663)$                  -83% 5,191$                 7,200$                 (2,009)$               -28% 9,600$                 
9 Repairs & Maintenance -$                        3,825$                 (3,825)$               -100% 5,450$                 34,425$               (28,975)$              -84% 45,900$               

10 Materials & Supplies 41,147$               58,933$               (17,787)$              -30% 582,941$             530,400$             52,541$               10% 707,200$             
11 Utilities/Telephone 10,410$               9,933$                 477$                    5% 93,723$               89,400$               4,323$                 5% 119,200$             
13 Liab & Prop Damage Insurance 22,361$               22,667$               (306)$                  -1% 202,085$             204,000$             (1,915)$               -1% 272,000$             
14 Other Coporate Insurance -$                        167$                    (167)$                  -100% -$                        1,500$                 (1,500)$               -100% 2,000$                 
15 Dues & Subscriptions 363$                    3,823$                 (3,459)$               -90% 12,823$               34,403$               (21,580)$              -63% 45,870$               
16 Education/Training/Meeting/Travel 4,197$                 8,250$                 (4,053)$               -49% 54,672$               74,250$               (19,578)$              -26% 99,000$               
17 Service Charges 1,796$                 2,142$                 (346)$                  -16% 14,630$               19,275$               (4,645)$               -24% 25,700$               
18 Office Expense 1,420$                 6,417$                 (4,996)$               -78% 46,699$               57,750$               (11,051)$              -19% 77,000$               
19 Advertising & Promotions 1,430$                 2,083$                 (653)$                  -31% 11,546$               18,750$               (7,204)$               -38% 25,000$               
20 Miscellaneous Expenses (993)$                  5,271$                 (6,264)$               -119% 35,187$               47,438$               (12,250)$              -26% 63,250$               
21 Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Comm 17,941$               12,083$               5,857$                 48% 160,698$             108,750$             51,948$               48% 145,000$             
22 LDDA, CRA Contributions                 -$                        13,833$               (13,833)$              -100% -$                        124,500$             (124,500)$            -100% 166,000$             
23 Capital Expenditures/ Debt Service 10,934$               56,717$               (45,783)$              -81% 99,130$               510,450$             (411,320)$            -81% 680,600$             
24 Bad Debt -$                        167$                    (167)$                  -100% -$                        1,500$                 (1,500)$               -100% 2,000$                 
25 Restricted Contingency                  -$                        11,737$               (11,737)$              -100% -$                        105,630$             (105,630)$            -100% 140,840$             

TOTAL ELIGIBLE EXPENSES: 670,460$             864,753$             (194,293)$            -22% 6,680,372$          7,782,780$          (1,102,408)$         -14% 10,377,040$        
NET REVENUES OVER

(UNDER)  EXPENSES (404,174)$            -$                        (404,174)$            474,427$             -$                        474,427$             -$                        

FY 2017
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Jun 2018

Month YTD Approved Annual 
BudgetActual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AUGUST 8, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM #5d 

 
Agenda Item: June 30, 2018 Financials for Polk County Transit Services 

Contract – FY 2017-18 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
  
Recommended  
Action: None  
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AUGUST 8, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM #5d 

 
 

 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 
              Month of June 30, 2018 
                      Year to Date Report 
              Percent of FY Reported (75%) 

 
 

 
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $3.8 million or 90% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The FTA grant drawdown reflects $.81 million or 59% of the grants. 
 Fare Revenues totaled $114,900 or 124% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The Polk County (City Contributions Fair Share) totaled $335,540. 
 The County funding is designed to reflect the incremental payments for the 

budgeted grants match totaling $1.66 million through June 30, 2018. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $4.0 million or 96% of the year-to-date 

budget.  
 Salaries and wages totaled $2.3 million or 89% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $1.1 million or 95% of the YTD Budget. 
 The contract services are for contractual cost for the Lynx contractual services 

totaled $605,000 over budget by 36%. The District is evaluating the increase 
in services that contributed to this expense with appropriate action to be taken. 

 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Financial Statement 

Polk County Contract 
Month of JUNE 2018 

 
   

  

Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Percent 

Expended
Revenues 
County Match 1,661,780$               1,246,335$              1,661,784$              133%
Other Contract Revenue - County         -$                              110,148$                 100%
City Contribution 208,080$                  156,060$                 335,542$                 215%
County Contribution - PCTS 298,920$                  224,190$                 298,920$                 133%

Fares 124,000$                  93,000$                   114,912$                 124%

FDOT Block Grants:
GO924/GOV71 - WHAT/ADA 613,660$                  460,245$                 235,983$                 51%
JARC AQ379 93,470$                    70,103$                   0%
RURAL AQR07 800,570$                  600,428$                 235,525$                 39%

FTA
FTA 5307 Grant 1,813,690$               1,360,268$              805,153$                 59%

Total 5,614,170$               4,210,629$              3,797,967$              90%

Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Percent 

Expended
Labor 3,512,900$               2,634,675$              2,348,898$              89%

Contract 594,000$                  445,500$                 604,688$                 136%

Operating 1,507,270$               1,130,453$              1,076,300$              95%

Total 5,614,170$               4,210,628$              4,029,886$              96%

Revenue

Expenses



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

August 8, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM #5e 

 
Agenda Item:  LAMTD Proposed Operating and Capital Budget 
 FY 2018-19 Budget 
 
Presenter:  Tom Phillips, Executive Director  
 David Persaud, CFO 
 
Recommended 
Action:  Presentation to the Board FY 2018-19 Proposed Budget 
 
Summary: Proposed Operating and Capital Budget is included. 

 
The proposed budget for the District is included herewith with 
revenues and expenses balanced for a total budget of $10,750,980. 
The budget is balanced with funding for the capital vehicle 
replacement program totaling $680,600 and includes the FY 
2018-19 annual debt service for totaling $561,600 for the FY 
2016-17 and planned lease bus purchases over a twelve-year 
period. The millage rate as certified at the .50 level reflects an 
increase of 6.6% or $287,000.  
 
A summary level description of the revenues and expenses are 
also included. A Power Point Presentation will follow this report. 
 

Attachments:  See attached Proposed Operating and Capital Budget 



REVENUES
Total Revenues are estimated at $ 10,750,980 a decrease of $373,940 (3.6%).

FARES
• Fares are projected to remain flat at $ 670,000 in FY 2019.

o The reasons are decline in Fixed Route Ridership.

• Total Contract revenue is projected at $984,710 a decrease of $123,570 in GEICO 
Contract termination..

• Advertising Revenue is projected to increase by $18,000 to $150,000.

• Property Tax Revenue is projected to increase $ 287,000 or 6.6%.

• Federal Grants will remain flat at $2,440,650 a decrease of $113,000.

• State FDOT Grants will increase $228,000 for State Corridors.

• Other revenue is estimated to increase $95,000 due to increase in interest income 
and misc. income.

1



OPERATING EXPENSES
Total expenses of $ 10,750,980 is estimated to increase $374,000 (3.6%).

• Salaries and wages are projected to increase $320,000 or 6.7 % due to labor contract and administrative 
salaries increase of 2.25% and addition of four positions in Fleet.

• Fringe benefits is expected to decrease $ 27,000 or 1.2% due to decline in health insurance premiums.

• Position count at Oct.1, 2018- full time 100.5 and part time 9, a total of 109.5.

• Services for professional and technical service, contract maintenance services and other services is projected
to increase $79,000 primarily due to increase for Radios and Avail System Maintenance.

• Fuel, Materials, Supplies and Parts is projected to increase $ 108,250 or 7.3 % due to increase in parts.

• Insurance Costs is expected to decrease $40,800 due to decrease in workers compensation premium.

• Misc. expense is decreasing $132,070 due to showing materials and supplies increase of $108,000 in the line 
item and decrease in other line items.

• Debt Service expenses is increasing $429,420 due to new Capital Lease financing.

• The Budget reflects $124,000 for operating contingency.

2



REVENUES FY ‘19 v FY ‘18 VARIANCE

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT
Fiscal Year Proposed Budget

FY 2018-19
August 9, 2018

3

REVENUES FY '18 BUDGET 
ADOPTED

% OF 
TOTAL

FY '19 BUDGET 
PROPOSED

% OF 
TOTAL

$ Inc / (Dec) 
'19 v '18

% Inc / (Dec) 
'19 v '18

Ad Valorem Taxes $4,382,360 37.40% $4,669,630 43.43% $287,270 6.56%

Passenger Fares 670,000 8.20% 670,000 6.23% $0 0.00%

Contract Revenues 1,108,280 11.70% 984,710 9.16% ($123,570) -11.15%

Federal Grants 2,553,650 25.10% 2,440,560 22.70% ($113,090) -4.43%

State Grants 1,493,150 15.80% 1,721,080 16.01% $227,930 15.27%

Other Revenues 169,600 1.90% 265,000 2.46% $95,400 56.25%

TOTAL $10,377,040 100.00% $10,750,980 100.00% 373,940 3.60%


Revenues

				REVENUES PERCENT OF TOTAL BUDGET



				REVENUES		FY '17 Actual		% OF TOTAL		FY '18		% OF TOTAL		FY '19		% OF TOTAL

										Adopted Budget				Proposed Budget

				Ad Valorem Taxes		$3,935,922		38.3%		$4,382,360		37%		$4,669,630		43.4%

				Passenger Fares		647,517		6.3%		670,000		8%		$670,000		6.2%

				Contract Revenues		1,183,735		11.5%		1,108,280		12%		$984,710		9.2%

				Federal Grants		2,481,251		24.2%		2,553,650		25%		$2,440,560		22.7%

				State Grants		1,716,818		16.7%		1,493,150		16%		$1,721,080		16.0%

				Other Revenues		303,328		3.0%		169,600		2%		$265,000		2.5%

				Total		$10,268,571		100%		$10,377,040		100%		$10,750,980		100.0%

				REVENUES FY 17 v FY 18  VARIANCE



				REVENUES		FY '18 BUDGET ADOPTED		% OF TOTAL		FY '19 BUDGET PROPOSED		% OF TOTAL		$ Inc / (Dec) '19 v '18		% Inc / (Dec) '19 v '18

				Ad Valorem Taxes		$4,382,360		37.40%		$4,669,630		43.43%		$287,270		6.56%

				Passenger Fares		670,000		8.20%		670,000		6.23%		$0		0.00%

				Contract Revenues		1,108,280		11.70%		984,710		9.16%		($123,570)		-11.15%

				Federal Grants		2,553,650		25.10%		2,440,560		22.70%		($113,090)		-4.43%

				State Grants		1,493,150		15.80%		1,721,080		16.01%		$227,930		15.27%

				Other Revenues		169,600		1.90%		265,000		2.46%		$95,400		56.25%

				TOTAL		$10,377,040		100.00%		$10,750,980		100.00%		373,940		3.60%



														%













										- 0





2016

		Account #		Deprtment		Account Description				2016		2015

		50101		1-0000		Accrued Payroll                         				(8,363.64)		29,746

				1-0450		Salaries - Operators (FR)               				1,020,371.43		1,303,274

				1-0500		Salaries - Operators (PT)               				405,148.84		444,331

		50102		1-0100		Salaries (Admin)                        				260,033.21		194,756

				1-0150		Other Salaries & Wages (Fin)            				491,918.26		389,679

				1-0250		Other Salaries & Wages (HR)             				133,895.94		119,680

				1-0300		Salaries - Customer Service (Mkt)       				75,264.15		88,265

				1-0350		Other Salaries & Wages (IT)             				191,074.11		159,305

				1-0400		Salaries - Operations Office (CC)       				216,153.93		202,957

				1-0550		Salaries - Operations (Supp)            				354,497.59		374,380

				1-0600		Other Salaries & Wages (S&S)            				86,455.02		134,641

				1-0650		Salaries (FltM)                         				626,225.13		648,514

				1-0700		Salaries (FacM)                         				196,225.44		164,511

		50103		1-0450		Operators - Overtime (FR)               				106,989.97		160,577

				1-0500		Operators - Overtime (PT)               				36,246.47		61,571

		50104		1-0100		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime(Admin)				2,310.78		2,690

				1-0150		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime (Fin) 				2,779.69		2,147

				1-0250		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime (HR)  						1,718

				1-0300		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime (Mkt) 						1,060

				1-0350		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime (IT)  				981.21		2,379

				1-0400		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime (CC)  				6,509.34		6,104

				1-0550		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime (Supp)				1,939.69		2,026

				1-0600		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime (S&S) 				24.17		364

				1-0650		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime (FltM)				65,520.72		54,871

				1-0700		Other Salaries & Wages - Overtime (FacM)				1,313.63		2,006

		50105		1-0100		Casual Labor (Admin)                    						1,016

				1-0150		Casual Labor (Fin)                      				435.88

		50105 Total								4,273,950.96		4,552,568

		50200		1-0100		Deferred Compensation (Admin)           				81.65		5,938

				1-0150		Deferred Compensation (Fin)             				72.75		11,971

				1-0250		Deferred Compensation (HR)              				26.55		2,830

				1-0300		Deferred Compensation (Mkt)             						3,357

				1-0350		Deferred Compensation (IT)              				29.80		4,242

				1-0400		Deferred Compensation (CC)              				86.92		8,111

				1-0450		Deferred Compensation (FR)              				224.26		35,159

				1-0500		Deferred Compensation (PT)              				56.51		8,494

				1-0550		Deferred Compensation (Supp)            				75.10		11,853

				1-0600		Deferred Compensation (S&S)             				44.23		4,679

				1-0650		Deferred Compensation (FltM)            				57.43		7,806

				1-0700		Deferred Compensation (FacM)            				43.40		4,600

		50201		1-0100		Social Security (Admin)                 				13,811.87		3,686

				1-0150		Social Security (Fin)                   				30,194.63		24,242

				1-0250		Social Security (HR)                    				8,130.89		7,665

				1-0300		Social Security (Mkt)                   				4,669.94		5,605

				1-0350		Social Security (IT)                    				11,260.93		9,739

				1-0400		Social Security (CC)                    				13,689.00		13,284

				1-0450		Social Security (FR)                    				68,064.94		91,381

				1-0500		Social Security (PT)                    				27,304.49		31,665

				1-0550		Social Security (Supp)                  				21,809.63		24,004

				1-0600		Social Security (S&S)                   				5,353.21		8,548

				1-0650		Social Security (FltM)                  				42,343.08		43,115

				1-0700		Social Security (FacM)                  				12,053.44		10,291

		50202		1-0100		Medicare (Admin)                        				3,230.14		918

				1-0150		Medicare (Fin)                          				7,061.38		5,670

				1-0250		Medicare (HR)                           				1,901.45		1,793

				1-0300		Medicare (Mkt)                          				1,092.08		1,311

				1-0350		Medicare (IT)                           				2,633.58		2,278

				1-0400		Medicare (CC)                           				3,201.41		3,107

				1-0450		Medicare (FR)                           				15,918.52		21,372

				1-0500		Medicare (PT)                           				6,388.91		7,406

				1-0550		Medicare (Supp)                         				5,100.49		5,614

				1-0600		Medicare (S&S)                          				1,251.97		1,999

				1-0650		Medicare (FltM)                         				9,902.89		10,084

				1-0700		Medicare (FacM)                         				2,818.98		2,407

		50203		1-0100		Pension Plan (Admin)                    				15,581.74

				1-0150		Pension Plan (Fin)                      				28,732.93

				1-0250		Pension Plan (HR)                       				9,588.62

				1-0300		Pension Plan (Mkt)                      				5,162.62

				1-0350		Pension Plan (IT)                       				13,462.59

				1-0400		Pension Plan (CC)                       				15,898.97

				1-0450		Pension Plan (FR)                       				80,209.86

				1-0500		Pension Plan (PT)                       				31,616.70

				1-0550		Pension Plan (Supp)                     				25,736.79

				1-0600		Pension Plan (S&S)                      				6,103.20

				1-0650		Pension Plan (FltM)                     				50,054.05

				1-0700		Pension Plan (FacM)                     				14,101.64

		50204		1-0100		Health Insurance (Admin)                				67,036.70		43,121

				1-0150		Health Insurance (Fin)                  				109,315.13		80,970

				1-0250		Health Insurance (HR)                   				27,694.41		18,222

				1-0300		Health Insurance (Mkt)                  				9,665.36		23,362

				1-0350		Health Insurance (IT)                   				49,357.95		40,852

				1-0400		Health Insurance (CC)                   				72,319.32		58,512

				1-0450		Health Insurance (FR)                   				442,370.66		437,706

				1-0500		Health Insurance (PT)                   				164,559.03		140,907

				1-0550		Health Insurance (Supp)                 				68,118.52		82,860

				1-0600		Health Insurance (S&S)                  				16,438.42		30,677

				1-0650		Health Insurance (FltM)                 				159,485.62		162,326

				1-0700		Health Insurance (FacM)                 				53,693.20		53,268

		50205		1-0100		Life Insurance (Admin)                  				114.91		12,342

				1-0150		Life Insurance (Fin)                    				1,986.58		912

				1-0250		Life Insurance (HR)                     				397.32		(150)

				1-0300		Life Insurance (Mkt)                    				345.36		293

				1-0350		Life Insurance (IT)                     				647.93		(814)

				1-0400		Life Insurance (CC)                     				1,191.94		985

				1-0450		Life Insurance (FR)                     				7,946.33		3,569

				1-0500		Life Insurance (PT)                     				3,575.84		1,674

				1-0550		Life Insurance (Supp)                   				1,986.58		658

				1-0600		Life Insurance (S&S)                    				794.63		236

				1-0650		Life Insurance (FltM)                   				2,781.21		1,508

				1-0700		Life Insurance (FacM)                   				1,191.95		285

		50206		1-0000		Accrued Payroll Taxes                   				(426.82)		11,154

		50207		1-0000		Unemployment Compensation               				14,475.35

				1-0450		Unemployment Compensation (FR)          						2,483

				1-0550		Unemployment Compensation (Supp)        						4,400

		50208		1-0200		Workers' Compensation                   						163,899

						Workers' Compensation (Ins)             				82,044.29

		50214		1-0100		Other Fringe Benefits (Admin)           						4,879

				1-0150		Other Fringe Benefits (Fin)             				500.00		500

				1-0500		Other Fringe Benefits (PT)              						108

		50216		1-0250		Driver Licenses (HR)                    				25.00		35

		50217		1-0650		Tool Allowance (FltM)                   				4,832.90		3,000

				1-0700		Tool Allowance (FacM)                   				1,270.54

		50210		1-0150		Fringe Benefits - Vac Time (Fin)        						789

		50920		1-0250		Employee Recognition (HR)               				348.00		3,690

										1,982,320.32		1,835,440



		50213		1-0450		Uniforms (FR)                           				4,904.54		6,104

				1-0500		Uniforms (PT)                           				1,692.16

				1-0550		Uniforms (Supp)                         				1,363.74

				1-0650		Uniforms (FltM)                         				5,812.82		7,555

		50215		1-0700		Uniforms (No Federal Funds) (FacM)      				53.32

		50213 Total								13,826.58		13,658





		50220		1-0100		FRS Exp (ER Contr) (Admin)              				382,111.50

		50220 Total								382,111.50



		50302		1-0100		Advertising Fees (Admin)                						5,350

				1-0150		Advertising Fees (Fin)                  				4,525.21		1,427

				1-0300		Advertising Fees (Mkt)                  				7,639.39		8,070

				1-0600		Advertising Fees (S&S)                  						365

		50908		1-0300		Advertising & Promotion (Mkt)           				42,679.46		87,067

		50302 Total								54,844.06		102,280



		50303		1-0100		Prof. & Technical Svc. (Admin)          				47,544.55		72,719

				1-0150		Prof. & Technical Svc. (Fin)            				100,568.00		39,584

				1-0250		Prof. & Technical Svc. (HR)             				9,016.63		4,724

				1-0300		Prof. & Technical Svc. (Mkt)            				25,622.15		71,226

				1-0350		Prof. & Technical Svc. (IT)             				12,420.00		16,290

				1-0400		Prof. & Technical Svc. (CC)             				40,612.50

				1-0450		Prof. & Technical Svc. (FR)             				102,609.16		2,220

				1-0500		Prof. & Technical Svc. (PT)             				9,750.00

				1-0600		Prof. & Technical Svc. (S&S)            				10,633.41		29,411

				1-0650		Prof. & Technical Svc. (FltM)           				3,277.01		16,094

				1-0700		Prof. & Technical Svc. (FacM)           				3,249.42		5,877

		50303 Total								365,302.83		258,145





		50305		1-0000		Contract Maintenance Svc.               						252

				1-0100		Contract Maintenance Svc. (Admin)       				1,008.30		1,668

				1-0150		Contract Maintenance Svc. (Fin)         				7,249.83		3,926

				1-0250		Contract Maintenance Svc. (HR)          						116

				1-0350		Contract Maintenance Svc. (IT)          				13,412.50		11,483

				1-0400		Contract Maintenance Svc. (CC)          						16,197

				1-0650		Contract Maintenance Svc. (FltM)        				43,534.52		28,854

				1-0700		Contract Maintenance Svc. (FacM)        						11,512

		50399		1-0100		Other Services (Admin)                  				463.88		420

				1-0150		Other Services (Fin)                    				4,067.65		2,969

				1-0250		Other Services (HR)                     				7,730.38		4,159

				1-0300		Other Services (Mkt)                    				4,734.78		5,864

				1-0350		Other Services (IT)                     				61.22		200

				1-0500		Other Services (PT)                     				53.00

				1-0550		Other Services (Supp)                   				2,105.25		27

				1-0600		Other Services (S&S)                    						109

				1-0650		Other Services (FltM)                   				36,311.26		42,944

				1-0700		Other Services (FacM)                   				260.25		14,332

										120,992.82		145,030.63



		50402		1-0450		Tires & Tubes (FR)                      				36,127.86

				1-0500		Tires & Tubes (PT)                      				12,699.43

				1-0600		Tires & Tubes (S&S)                     				428.00

				1-0650		Tires & Tubes (FltM)                    				65,897.90

				1-0700		Tires & Tubes (FacM)                    				871.80

		50403		1-0350		Freight (IT)                            				46.18

				1-0450		Freight (FR)                            						61

				1-0650		Freight (FltM)                          				4,201.22		4,073

		50404		1-0450		Batteries (FR)                          				4,878.00

				1-0500		Batteries (PT)                          				1,326.00

				1-0550		Batteries (Supp)                        				72.50

				1-0650		Batteries (FltM)                        				901.00

				1-0700		Batteries (FacM)                        				174.10

		50460		1-0000		Materials & Supplies                    				5,347.00		3,241

				1-0100		Materials & Supplies (Admin)            				6,107.81		3,398

				1-0150		Materials & Supplies (Fin)              				5,034.17		2,096

				1-0250		Materials & Supplies (HR)               				4,935.97		3,494

				1-0300		Materials & Supplies (Mkt)              				2,806.66		9,931

				1-0350		Materials & Supplies (IT)               				10,501.29		6,648

				1-0400		Materials & Supplies (CC)               				65.34

				1-0450		Materials & Supplies (FR)               				123,649.84		7,884

				1-0500		Materials & Supplies (PT)               				36,587.22

				1-0550		Materials & Supplies (Supp)             				60.47

				1-0600		Materials & Supplies (S&S)              				801.62

				1-0650		Materials & Supplies (FltM)             				99,622.17		545,820

				1-0700		Materials & Supplies (FacM)             				33,537.11		33,646

		50461		1-0650		Misc Shop Supplies (FltM)               				50,577.30		46,318

		50462		1-0650		Materials & Supplies - Core Charges (Flt				10,079.84

		50465		1-0650		Service / Inventory Parts (FltM)        				7,648.71

		50399 Total								524,986.51		956,670



		50400		1-0450		Fuel Gasoline (FR)                      				2,790.37

				1-0500		Fuel Gasoline (PT)                      				31,814.27

		50401		1-0100		Fuel Diesel (Admin)                     				1,077.73

				1-0300		Fuel Diesel (Mkt)                       				746.53

				1-0400		Fuel Diesel (CC)                        				162.94

				1-0450		Fuel (FR)                               						823,797

						Fuel Diesel (FR)                        				457,707.28

				1-0500		Fuel (PT)                               						89,899

						Fuel Diesel (PT)                        				51,935.59

				1-0550		Fuel (Supp)                             						563

						Fuel Diesel (Supp)                      				3,749.80

				1-0600		Fuel Diesel (S&S)                       				420.65

				1-0650		Fuel (FltM)                             						552

						Fuel Diesel (FltM)                      				3,558.58

				1-0700		Fuel Diesel (FacM)                      				3,240.11

		50405		1-0450		Lubricants (FR)                         				18,289.73		38,951

				1-0500		Lubricants (PT)                         						379

				1-0650		Lubricants (FltM)                       				7,860.79		1,481

		50406		1-0450		Fuel Tax Refund (FR)                    				(80,192.83)

				1-0650		Fuel Tax Refund (FltM)                  						(108,361)

		50401 Total								503,161.54		847,259





		50451		1-0700		R & M Admin Bldg (FacM)                 				357.50		1,186

		50452		1-0700		R & M Terminal (FacM)                   				1,198.29		1,287

		50453		1-0550		Repairs & Maint (Supp)                  				127.20

				1-0700		Repairs & Maint (FacM)                  				58,214.94		1,200

		50454		1-0350		Repairs & Maint - Equipment (IT)        				319.62

				1-0650		Repairs & Maint - Equipment (FltM)      				6,474.90		6,029

				1-0700		Repairs & Maint - Equipment (FacM)      				59.98		565

		50455		1-0650		Repairs & Maint - Buses (FltM)          				5,963.87		10,057

		50455 Total								72,716.30		20,324





		50502		1-0700		Utilities (Electric) (FacM)             				43,486.34		46,858

		50503		1-0700		Utilities (Water) (FacM)                				7,700.69		9,027

		50504		1-0000		Telephone                               				26,860.03		34,396

				1-0700		Telephone (FacM)                        				3,744.68		358

		50505		1-0000		Cell Phone                              				29,189.04		26,807

				1-0700		Utilities (Solid Waste) (FacM)          				7,138.00		9,257

		50505 Total								118,118.78		126,703



		50605		1-0200		Other Corporate Insurance (Ins)         				1,010.00		- 0

						Auto Physical Damage Coverage (Ins)     				25,278.03		24,036

						Auto Liability Coverage (Ins)           				136,699.75		145,752

						General Liability Coverage (Ins)        				52,783.10		42,959

						Property Coverage (Ins)                 				30,778.02		25,018

		50604 Total								246,548.90		237,765



		50902		1-0000		Travel/Meetings                         				347.09

				1-0100		Travel/Meetings (Admin)                 				27,254.00		24,627

				1-0150		Travel/Meetings (Fin)                   				5,915.74		7,222

				1-0250		Travel/Meetings (HR)                    				3,933.17		1,139

				1-0300		Travel/Meetings (Mkt)                   				3,884.88		2,666

				1-0350		Travel/Meetings (IT)                    				818.11		46

				1-0400		Travel/Meetings (CC)                    				3,728.16		286

				1-0450		Travel/Meetings (FR)                    				1,194.43		3,129

				1-0500		Travel/Meetings (PT)                    				2,230.99

				1-0550		Travel/Meetings (Supp)                  				127.00		417

				1-0600		Travel/Meetings (S&S)                   				940.95		1,378

				1-0650		Travel/Meetings (FltM)                  				3,511.73		5,538

		50902 Total								53,886.25		46,448





		50903		1-0100		Employee Education (Admin)              				6,278.62		2,130

				1-0150		Employee Education (Fin)                				2,335.10		745

				1-0250		Employee Education (HR)                 				410.20

				1-0350		Employee Education (IT)                 				4,220.55		198

				1-0500		Employee Education (PT)                 				55.00

				1-0600		Employee Education (S&S)                				665.00		675

				1-0650		Employee Education (FltM)               				(989.68)		(624)

		50903 Total								12,974.79		3,124



		50904		1-0000		Service Charges                         				16,052.68		30

				1-0100		Service Charges (Admin)                 						15,489

				1-0150		Service Charges (Fin)                   				21.00

		50905		1-0000		Office Expense                          				4,522.08		920

				1-0100		Office Expense (Admin)                  				9,601.64		2,445

				1-0150		Office Expense (Fin)                    				11,294.64		5,671

				1-0250		Office Expense (HR)                     				1,985.88		2,809

				1-0300		Office Expense (Mkt)                    				558.99		222

				1-0350		Office Expense (IT)                     				1,903.08

				1-0550		Office Expense (Supp)                   				500.17		637

				1-0600		Office Expense - Overhead (S&S)         				710.42		(456)

				1-0650		Office Expense (FltM)                   				2,038.78		1,787

				1-0700		Office Expense (FacM)                   						400

		50907		1-0100		Postage & Shipping (Admin)              				2,853.15		3,541

				1-0150		Postage & Shipping (Fin)                				394.84

				1-0250		Postage & Shipping (HR)                 				6.47

				1-0300		Postage & Shipping (Mkt)                						38

				1-0550		Postage & Shipping (Supp)               						36

		50911		1-0100		Printing (Admin)                        				392.45		6,603

				1-0300		Printing (Mkt)                          				7,413.07		11,075

				1-0450		Printing (FR)                           						7,668

				1-0600		Printing (S&S)                          				417.00		416

		50910		1-0350		Software (IT)                           				5,737.72		17,087

		50913		1-0000		Software Licensing & Maintenance        				11,294.00		16,699

		50914		1-0350		Computer Hardware (IT)                  				127.50		566

		50906		1-0100		Fines & Penalties (Admin)               				508.00		4,248

				1-0150		Fines & Penalties (Fin)                 				1,961.98

		50909		1-0000		Special Functions (Non-Dept)            				6,450.46

				1-0100		Special Functions Fees (Admin)          				11,627.43		3,095

										98,373.43		101,028



		51201		1-0000		Leases & Rentals                        				3,861.08		817

		51201 Total								3,861.08		817











		55001		1-0000		Depreciation Expense                    				1,156,721.10		1,090,688

		55001 Total								1,156,721.10		1,090,688



		50999		1-0000		Miscellaneous                           				26,123.90

				1-0100		Miscellaneous (Admin)                   						155

				1-0250		Miscellaneous (HR)                      				180.00

				1-0350		Miscellaneous (IT)                      				66.98

				1-0400		Miscellaneous (CC)                      				22.89

				1-0450		Miscellaneous (FR)                      				75.00

				1-0500		Miscellaneous (PT)                      				75.00

				1-0650		Miscellaneous (FltM)                    				199.60

				1-0700		Miscellaneous (FacM)                    				177.50		7,144

		50306		1-0250		Recruitment                             				2,833.41

		50901		1-0000		Dues & Subscriptions                    				191.00

				1-0100		Dues & Subscriptions (Admin)            				27,033.00		20,303

				1-0150		Dues & Subscriptions (Fin)              				5,259.55		3,129

				1-0250		Dues & Subscriptions (HR)               				6,432.71		6,005

				1-0300		Dues & Subscriptions (Mkt)              				1,440.00		275

				1-0350		Dues & Subscriptions (IT)               				256.71		459

				1-0550		Dues & Subscriptions (Supp)             						110

				1-0650		Dues & Subscriptions (FltM)             						140

		50704		1-0100		Taxes & Licenses (Admin)                						175

				1-0550		Taxes, Vehicle Licensing & Registration 						127

		55601		1-0000		Short / Over in cash                    						5

		52002		1-0000		Winter Haven Billable Expenses          						38,161

		55501		1-0000		Bad Debts                               				6,000.00		22,207

		51204		1-0000		Tax Collectors Commission               				74,768.99		70,341

		51202		1-0000		Property Appraiser                      				62,728.00		57,222

										213,864.24		225,957



		Total Operating Expenses								10,077,569.17		10,418,875





		NON Operating Expenses

		51203		1-0000		LDDA, CRA Contributions                 				139,136.00		143,692



		60001		1-0000		Capital Expenditures                    				13,570.56		- 0

		60005		1-0000		Debt Service Interest                   				17,708.39		- 0

										31,278.95



		Non Operating Expenses								170,414.95		143,692



		Total Expenditures								10,247,984.12		10,562,567



		Revenue & Expenditures -MCSJ								(16,278,623.52)

										(6,030,639.40)





2016-2

		Account Number		Account Description		2016		2015

		1-401-000-BART         		Bartow Express Outside Oper As          		437,533.64		173,047.34

		1-401-000-COFL         		City of Lakeland Contract Revenue       		50,126.12

		1-401-000-OCRV         		Other Contract Revenue                  		244,884.98

		1-401-010-0050         		FL Poly Univ - Contract                 		310,260.48		182,635.92

		1-401-010-PCSB         		Polk Cty School Brd Contract Revenue    		47,085.00		46,549.75

		1-401-000-WHCO         		Monthly billing for WH service          				1,214,983.92

		1-405-010-9999         		Universal Access Credit                 		22,450.93		(47,470.66)

		1-405-010-GEI0         		GEICO CONTRACT REVENUE                  		36,809.43

		1-405-010-GEIC         		GEICO CAPITAL REVENUE                   		11,834.88

		1-405-010-LEGO         		Legoland Contract Revenue               		12,000.00		12,000.00

		1-405-010-MISC         		Other Universal Access Revenue          		83,450.00		67,280.00

		1-405-010-PSC0         		Polk State College Contract Revenue     		36,000.00		36,000.00

		1-405-010-SEU0         		Southeastern Univ Contract Revenue      				18,000.00

		1-405-010-VET0         		Universal Access Revenue - Veterans     				11,468.03

		1-499-000-0000         		Cost Recovery (WH only)                 				245,235.43

						1,292,435.46		1,959,729.73





		1-401-010-0000         		Farebox Revenues-Regular Route          		482,793.55		589,622.27

		1-401-020-0000         		Farebox Revenues - Handy Bus            		760.60

				Farebox Revenues-Handy Bus              				2,823.96

		1-401-110-CIT0         		Pass Sales-Citpack                      		48,099.00		65,478.00

		1-401-110-DP10         		Day Pass - Adult                        		11,281.50		11,558.50

		1-401-110-DP11         		Day Pass - Adult 10 Pack                		6,849.00		7,947.00

		1-401-110-DP20         		Day Pass - Senior                       		875.00		1,273.00

		1-401-110-DP21         		Day Pass - Senior 10 Pack               		2,594.00		2,430.00

		1-401-110-DP30         		Day Pass - Student                      		407.00		80.00

		1-401-110-DP31         		Day Pass - Student 10 Pack              		726.00		877.00

		1-401-110-WKLY         		Pass Sales - Weekly Pass                		25,067.00		36,956.00

		1-401-120-0000         		Pass Sales - Handy (Cash)               		158,377.15		88,632.35

		1-401-999-CIT0         		Pass Sales-Citipack                     		20,586.00		14,570.00

		1-401-999-DP10         		Day Pass - Adult                        		1,197.00		39.00

		1-401-999-DP11         		Day Pass - Adult 10 Pack                		11,340.00		28,458.00

		1-401-999-DP20         		Day Pass - Senior                       		42.50		51.00

		1-401-999-DP21         		Day Pass - Senior 10 Pack               		195.00		525.00

		1-401-999-DP31         		Day Pass - Student 10 Pack              		8,360.00		32,890.00

		1-401-999-WKLY         		Pass Sales - Weekly Pass                		1,320.00		6,624.00

		1-401-999-ZZZZ         		Pass Sales - Handy                      		6,506.00		34,502.00

						787,376.30		925,337.08





		1-406-030-0001         		Advertising Revenue - Billed            		153,731.31		155,248.50













		Non Operating Revenue

		1-408-010-0000         		Tax Revenues - Ad Valorem               		3,691,580.22		3,468,727.41



		1-411-030-0000         		Operating Grant - FDOT                  		743,196.25		759,094.01

		1-413-055-0000         		FDOT S.Fla Corridor Oper.               		380,284.54		646,994.09

						1,123,480.79		1,406,088.10



		1-413-010-0000         		Operating Grant - Federal               		1,958,630.00		2,560,339.60



		1-408-050-0000         		Interest Earned                         		504.72		521.87

		1-408-050-0999         		Interest Earned                         		83.16

		1-407-040-0000         		Investment Income                       		18,995.63		932.89

		1-487-000-0000         		Gain on Disposal of Asset               		5,736.99		600.00

		1-488-000-0000         		Unrealized gain/loss on investments     				16,321.26

		1-499-010-0000         		Cost Recovery (NON WH ONLY)             		22,277.41		2,757.64

		1-900-000-0000         		CANCEL PRIOR YEAR EXPENSE               		2,221.56

		1-402-000-0000         		Miscellaneous Income                    		4,450.29		72,336.93

		1-402-000-VEND         		Misc. Rev.-Vending Machine              		1,593.00		1,926.00

		1-402-999-0000         		Miscellaneous Income **CASH**           		21,829.15		4,089.57

								177,568.86

		1-401-000-PCTS         		Polk Cty Transit Svcs Admin Reimburs    		377,930.04										16,312,882.22

						455,621.95		277,055.02								(15,103,203.00)

								- 0								1,209,679.22

		Miscellaneous Revenue/Expenses



		Total Non Operating Revenue				ERROR:#REF!		ERROR:#REF!





		1-421-000-0000         		Capital Grant - Federal                 		820,603.00		78,497.47

		1-422-000-0000         		Capital Grant - State                   		4,860.00		102,773.60

		1-425-000-0000         		Charitable Contributions                		18,000.00		396,000.00

		1-425-999-0000         		Charitable Contributions                				17,000.00

		Capital Grants				843,463.00		594,271.07								ERROR:#REF!





		Total Revenue				ERROR:#REF!

		MCSJ Revenue & Expenditures Total 				(16,312,882.22)

						ERROR:#REF!





Expenses

				EXPENSES PERCENT OF TOTAL BUDGET



				EXPENSES		FY '17 Actual		% OF TOTAL		FY '18		% OF TOTAL		FY '19		% OF

										Adopted Budget				Proposed Budget		TOTAL

				Salaries and wages		$4,354,836		40.9%		4,443,130		43.0%		4,763,620		44.3%

				Fringe Benefits		2,510,352		23.6%		2,157,880		21.5%		2,131,450		19.8%				FRS Expense

				Services		475,763		4.5%		501,970		4.6%		581,350		5.4%

				Materials and Supplies Consumed		1,052,499		9.9%		1,366,200		12.6%		1,474,450		13.7%				1,523,450.00

				Utilities		130,785		1.2%		119,200		1.1%		127,470		1.2%				(1,071,874.00)

				Casualty and Liability Insurance		239,454		2.3%		274,000		2.5%		233,200		2.2%				451,576.00

				Miscellaneous Expenses		220,872		2.1%		382,220		3.1%		250,150		2.3%

				Depreciation		1,328,709		12.5%						0

				Restricted Contingency		0		0.0%		140,840		2.5%		123,920		1.2%

				Tax Collector's Commissions,		293,273				311,000		2.8%		384,770

				Property Appraiser's Fees/CRA Tax Increment Payment				2.8%								3.6%

				Total Operating Expenses		$10,606,542		99.7%		$9,696,440		93.5%		$10,070,380		93.7%

				Capital Expenditures		$0		0.0%		$548,420		6.5%		$119,000		1.1%

				Debt Services		$33,476				$132,180				$561,600		5.2%

				Total Operating Expenses		$10,640,018		99.7%		$10,377,040		100.0%		$10,750,980		100.0%

				EXPENSES FY 17 FY18 VARIANCE



				EXPENSES		FY '18 BUDGET ADOPTED		% OF TOTAL		FY '19 BUDGET PROPOSED		% OF TOTAL		$ Inc / (Dec) '19 v '18		% Inc / (Dec) '19 v '18

				Salaries and wages		$4,443,130		43.0%		4,763,620		44.3%		$320,490		7.2%

				Fringe Benefits		2,157,880		21.5%		2,131,450		19.8%		($26,430)		-1.2%

				Services		501,970		4.6%		581,350		5.4%		$79,380		15.8%

				Materials and Supplies Consumed		1,366,200		12.6%		1,474,450		13.7%		$108,250		7.9%

				Utilities		119,200		1.1%		127,470		1.2%		$8,270		6.9%

				Casualty and Liability Insurance		274,000		2.5%		233,200		2.2%		($40,800)		-14.9%

				Miscellaneous Expenses		382,220		3.1%		250,150		2.3%		($132,070)		-34.6%

				Restricted Contingency		140,840				123,920		1.2%		($16,920)		-12.0%

				Tax Collector's Commissions, Property Appraiser's Fees/CRA Tax Increment Payment		311,000		12.2%		384,770		3.6%		73,770		23.7%

				Total Operating Expenditures		$9,696,440		93.4%		$10,070,380		93.7%		$373,940		3.9%

				Capital Expenditures		548,420		6.6%		119,000		1.1%		(429,420.00)		-78.3%

				Debt Services		132,180				561,600		5.2%		429,420.00		19.4%

				TOTAL		$10,377,040		100.00%		$10,750,980		100.00%		$   373,940		3.6%





chart





Ad Valorem

				AD VALOREM TAXES 2010-2017



				YEAR		MILLAGE		PROPERTY TAXES		BUDGET / ACTUAL CHANGES				-21%

				2018				$4,382,360		Budget 4.8%				100%

				2017		0.5		$3,892,460		Budget 6.7%				-121%

				2016		0.5		$3,648,360		Budget 5.2%

				2015		0.5		$3,468,727		Actual  10.8%

				2014		0.5		$3,130,779		Actual ( 5.9)%

				2013		0.5		$3,325,557		Actual  7.2%

				2012		0.5		$3,101,271		Actual ( 3.4)%

				2011		0.5		$3,209,778		Actual (9.1)%

				2010		0.5		$3,531,034		Actual







EXPENSES FY ‘19 v FY ‘18 VARIANCE

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT
Fiscal Year Proposed Budget

FY 2018-19
August 9, 2018

4

EXPENSES FY '18 BUDGET 
ADOPTED

% OF 
TOTAL

FY '19 BUDGET 
PROPOSED

% OF 
TOTAL

$ Inc / (Dec) '19 v '18 % Inc / (Dec) 
'19 v '18

Salaries and wages $4,443,130 45.8% 4,763,620 47.3% $320,490 6.7%
Fringe Benefits 2,157,880 22.3% 2,131,450 21.2% ($26,430) -1.2%
Services 501,970 5.2% 581,350 5.8% $79,380 13.7%
Materials and Supplies 
Consumed

1,366,200 14.1% 1,474,450 14.6% $108,250 7.3%

Utilities 119,200 1.2% 127,470 1.3% $8,270 6.5%
Casualty and Liability Insurance 274,000 2.8% 233,200 2.3% ($40,800) -17.5%
Miscellaneous Expenses 382,220 3.9% 250,150 2.5% ($132,070) -52.8%

Restricted Contingency 140,840 1.5% 123,920 1.2% ($16,920) -13.7%

Tax Collector's Commissions, 
Property Appraiser's Fees/CRA 
Tax Increment Payment

311,000 3.2% 384,770 3.8% $73,770 19.2%

Total Operating Expenditures $9,696,440 93.4% $10,070,380 93.7% $373,940 3.7%

Capital Expenditures 548,420 5.7% 119,000 1.2% ($429,420) -360.9%

Debt Services 132,180 1.4% 561,600 5.6% $429,420 76.5%

TOTAL $10,377,040 100% $10,750,980 100%  $                  373,940 -280.7%



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AUGUST 8, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM #6 

 
 
Agenda Item: Progress Report for the Polk Transit Development Plan (TDP) 

2018 
 
Presenter: Diane Slaybaugh, TPO 
 
Summary  An annual progress report is a requirement of the Florida  

 Department of Transportation for the continuation of State Block 
Grant Funds 

 
Recommended  
Action: Board approval 
 
 
Attachments: 2018 Progress Report 
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 1 

MY RIDE: POLK TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
2017-2026 

 

2018 PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 
 

Submitted To: 
 

Florida Department of Transportation 
District One  

 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pending Adoption 
 

http://www.dot.state.fl.us/


 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 2 

Section 1:  Introduction 
 

The State of Florida Public Transit Block Grant Program was enacted by the Florida 
Legislature to provide a stable source of funding for public transit.  The Block Grant 
Program requires public transit service providers to develop, adopt, and annually update a 
Ten-Year Transit Development Plan (TDP).  Under legislation that became effective 
February 20, 2007, the TDP must undergo a Major Update every five years.  In the Interim 
years, an update is to be submitted in the form of a progress report on the ten-year 
implementation program of the TDP.  Major updates involve more substantial reporting 
requirements than annual progress reports.  Each update must be submitted to the 
appropriate Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) District Office by September 1st. 

The most recent major update of the Polk County Transit Development Plan, My Ride, was 
adopted by the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District (LAMTD) Board in August, 2017.  This 
document comprises LAMTD’s annual progress report for the 10-year period from 2018 
through 2027 and meets the requirement for a TDP annual progress report in accordance 
with Rule Chapter 14-73, Florida Administrative Code (FAC).  Table 1-1 lists the TDP 
requirements from Rule 14-73.001 for annual progress reports and indicates whether or 
not the item was accomplished in this TDP. 

 

 

Table 1-1:  TDP Progress Report Checklist 

Annual Progress Report Checklist Item Related Section 
Past Year’s accomplishments compared to the original 
implementation program 

 
Section 2 – Progress Report 

Analysis of discrepancies between the plan and its 
implementation for the past year and steps that will be taken 
to attain or modify original goals and objectives 

 
Section 2 – Progress Report 

Any revisions to the implementation program for the coming 
year 

 
Section 3 – Implementation and Financial 
Plan 

Revised implementation program for the new tenth year  
Section 3 – Implementation and Financial 
Plan 

Added recommendations for the new tenth year of the 
updated plan 

 
Section 3 – Implementation and Financial 
Plan 

A revised financial plan  
Section 3 – Implementation and Financial 
Plan 

A revised list of projects or services needed to meet the goals 
and objectives 

 
Section 3 – Implementation and Financial 
Plan 

Source:  Transit Development Plan Review Guidance for FDOT Districts, August 2009. 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 3 

 

 

Identification of the Submitting Entity: 

 

 Agency:  Lakeland Area Mass Transit District (LAMTD) 

        Dba/Citrus Connection 

 Telephone Number:  (863) 688-RIDE (7433) 

 Mailing Address:  1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL 33815 

 Authorizing Agency Representative:  Mr. Tom Phillips, Executive Director 

 

For more information about this plan, please contact Mr. Rodney Wetzel, Senior Planner, 
Citrus Connection, at the phone number or address above. 

 

 

Organization of the Report:  This TDP progress report is organized into the following 
sections: 

 

Section 1:  Introduction – This section outlines the requirements of a TDP and 
includes contact information for the submitting agency. 

Section 2:  Progress Report – This section includes the progress report on past 
year’s accomplishments and milestones achieved including the status of plan goals 
and objectives. 

Section 3:  Implementation and Financial Plan – This section presents the 
revised Implementation and Financial Program including the integration of any new 
recommendations. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 4 

Section 2:  Progress Report 
 

Over the last year, LAMTD has achieved some milestones consistent with the adopted 
implementation plan in My Ride the TDP Major Update.  The progress report included in 
this section is organized into two major categories:  1. Transit capital and infrastructure 
projects, and 2. Service planning and operational projects.  Each project or activity is briefly 
described and the accomplishment achieved is summarized.  Any discrepancies between 
the Implementation plan and the activity described are noted and steps to be taken to 
modify the corresponding goal or milestone are presented.  An additional subsection is 
included which presents the status of LAMTD goals and objectives identified in the My Ride 
TDP major update. 

PROGRESS REPORT ON MILESTONES 

Progress on ongoing efforts since the TDP major update adoption in August 2017, are 
summarized below.  These efforts help LAMTD accomplish priority goals and work 
objectives. 

Transit Capital and Infrastructure 

Bus Acquisitions 

With the implementation of a bus replacement plan, LAMTD acquired three new 24 ft. 
buses to the fleet, each with 4 wheelchair positions.  They received five new 35 ft. Gillig 
buses for the fixed-route fleet.  Two used Gillig buses were acquired as “rehab” projects, 
transferred from West Palm Beach transit agency, and one 2002 Gillig Phantom was 
removed from service. 

Park and Ride Lot on North 98   

One of the highlights of this year and a major goal of the 
TDP was the completion of the new Park and Ride on 
North 98.  This project now stands as a major gateway to 
the City of Lakeland and has facilitated new partnerships 
with private transit agencies such as Mega Bus.  The 
second round of funding for this project has been 
submitted.  If awarded, two additional shelters, 
bathrooms, bike lockers, and an awning would be 
installed for the protection of riders from the elements. 

Transit Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) Projects 

Citrus Connection introduced a new fare media and commended its loyal passengers for 
their cooperation and willingness to change the way they pay their fares aboard its buses.  
The new Citrus Connection SMARTCARD fare payment system was implemented and is 
progressing each day.  This new technology allows LAMTD to track not only ridership, but 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 5 

the rider and individual bus stop utilization.  The District now has the ability to identify 
trends (strengths and deficiencies) in the system.   

Other ITS project updates included: 

 All Mentor Ranger Units were removed on County owned paratransit buses and 
replaced with Avail units. 

 New servers were installed in Lakeland to host the AVAIL communications system. 
 Tap Card readers for Smart Cards were installed in all fixed-route and paratransit 

buses. 
 Four (4) customer service Smart Card ticket sales stations were installed. 
 All GFI Genfare Fare boxes on fixed-route buses were removed and replaced with 

Diamond fare boxes. 

East Polk Maintenance Facility 

Since the inception of transit services in the Winter Haven urbanized area, the need for a 
maintenance facility to service those vehicles that deliver transit services to the east Polk 
County routes has been a priority listed in the TDP.  There is an existing maintenance 
facility in West Polk County, but due to the large geographical size of Polk County, it 
presents a great challenge to the routes operating in the eastern side of the County. 

LAMTD secured consultant services to draw up concept plans for this proposed facility, in 
phases – a temporary facility and a permanent facility, along with cost estimates.  The 
temporary facility plan allows locating fuel tanks, a building and a work pad on the west 
side of the property, while the permanent facility would locate the buildings and fuel tanks 
to the east and north side of the property.  This facility would be located on property 
currently owned by the City of Winter Haven, and ongoing discussions are occurring 
regarding the long-term use of the land.  The construction of the facility is also contingent 
upon successful securement of federal funding.  

Capital Asset Management Plan 

Per new federal regulations, this is currently in process.  Transit performance measure 
targets were developed in coordination between LAMTD and the Polk TPO in January, 
2017.  As of the date of this report, all facilities have been inspected and rated.  The 
calculation sheet will be completed when the full inventory is conducted.  The final Transit 
Asset Management Plan will be completed by October 1, 2018. 

 

Service Planning and Operations 

Ridership 

The fixed-route service in Lakeland, Winter Haven and the rural areas provided 1,252,509 
rides in fiscal year 2016/17, which was slightly down from the 1,304,808 in 2015/16.  As 
the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) for Polk County, Citrus Connection 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 6 

provided 21,024 transportation disadvantaged trips in 2017, up from 17,167 in 2016.  In 
2017, 56,484 ADA trips were provided, up from 54,061 the previous year. 

 

New Routes 

Route 61, service to North Lakeland, was officially kicked off this year with a ribbon cutting 
ceremony at the Public Supermarket at Lake Gibson.  Route 61, Citrus Connection’s most 
northern route in Lakeland, travels from the Gow W. Fields Park and Ride at I-4 and US 98 
North up to Banana Road. 

Route 59X, the County Line Express, was introduced 
to serve large employers in this area on the western 
side of Polk County. 

Route 60 was introduced in northeast Winter Haven 
to increase service and on-time performance.  With 
the addition of this route, it allowed Route 30 to 
return to a 60-minute route to increase frequency. 

Additional Pass Sales Hours at Terminals 

The hours of the Bus Pass Sales windows at the Lakeland and Winter Haven terminals were 
expanded.  They are open Monday through Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.  This 
enhances access to the fixed-route service and complements the other ticket purchase 
options for all Citrus Connection’s riders. 

Community Score Card/Transit Scoring Index 

LAMTD implemented a project to collect data on routes by trip instead of on a daily basis 
by sampling.  The idea was to have solid documentation of hourly data in order to analyze 
the peak and off-peak trips along each route.  In turn, this would allow the agency to review 
the data quarterly and make route adjustments to ensure the service is being performed in 
the most cost-effective manner.  This route data is published on Citrus Connection’s 
website to allow the public to view which routes may be affected.  It is color-coded – green 
indicates the route is performing well with no adjustments needed.  Yellow indicates there 
may be minor route adjustments; and red indicates the need for major adjustments.  This 
method has been very successful and modeled by other transit agencies across the country. 

Universal Access Program Agreements   

Businesses, colleges, schools and organizations recognize the 
importance of public transportation by entering into Universal 
Access Agreements (UAPs) with LAMTD, where businesses and 
educational institutions pay a flat rate to subsidize transit for 
their employees, students or clients.  Riders show their ID and 
are able to ride free.  This program continues to thrive, with 
approximately a dozen UAPs currently in place, including 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 7 

Southeastern University, Pace Center for Girls, Polk County Schools, Peace River Center, 
and LEGOLAND.  LAMTD is also proud of their partnership with the Polk County Board of 
County Commissioners for subsidizing free transportation for Veterans through a UAP.  

Fair Share Agreements 

In the Winter Haven urbanized areas, there are local municipalities that have partnered 
with transit to provide their citizens better access to public transportation.  For many 
years, these contributions have been way below the fully allocated cost for service within 
their respective jurisdictions.  LAMTD is diligently working with all of the municipalities to 
increase their contributions by one-third of their twenty percent of cost.   

Summer of Safety 

Thanks to a partnership between New Beginnings High School and Citrus Connection, the 
Summer of Safety program is running for its fifth year providing free public transportation 
to Polk County students ages 12-18.  This program provides crucial transportation options 
throughout the summer when students are not in school and it the first of its kind in the 
United States. 

Quality Assurance 

Citrus Connection staff regular administers surveys to riders for quality-assurance 
purposes, as well as identifying where and when their riders need public transportation.  
Current data shows that 60% of riders are using the system five days per week going to 
work, medical appointments or educational opportunities. 

A Quality Assurance team was formed and has initiated a Quality Assurance line to help 
facilitate open lines of communication with our riders.  All bus operators have received 
Quality Assurance Line cards to handout to passengers. 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Triennial Review 

Every three years, the FTA conducts a comprehensive compliance audit of each recipient of 
FTA Section 5307 Urbanized Area grant funds.  The compliance audit consists of 20 subject 
areas which cover Procurement and Satisfactory Continuing Control, Civil Rights, and 
several other federal mandates.  The process generally consists of two steps, a desk review 
conducted off-site by the FTA consultant reviewer and then a formal site visit.  LAMTD 
serves as the designated recipient for the Lakeland and Winter Haven urbanized areas 
within Polk County.  The FTA conducted a Triennial Review in April, 2018.  No deficiencies 
were found with the FTA requirements in 19 areas.  One deficiency was found in ADA-
General, regarding revising the Riders’ Guide to publicize how the public may request a 
reasonable modification for accessibility to transit services.  This will be completed on or 
before September 10, 2018. 

Preparing for Safety 

In preparation for hurricane season, staff prepared an Emergency Operations Guide and all 
staff was trained in the event the Agency is required to assist in emergency operations. 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 8 

Citrus Connection assisted hurricane evacuees from Puerto Rico, by allowing them to show 
the bus operator their ID card from Puerto Rico and ride the bus at no charge.  High schools 
students who have also relocated making Polk County their temporary home will also 
receive subsidized transportation through the COLTS Program. 

Citrus Connection has partnered with Polk County Fire Rescue to help spread safety 
messages inside the 27 buses traveling throughout the County.   

 

 

EVALUATION OF TDP GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

Goals and objectives are an integral part of any transportation plan because they provide 
policy direction to achieve the community’s vision.  As part of the planning process, goals, 
objectives and policies were established in My Ride – Polk Transit Development Plan FY 
2017-FY2026.  The resulting goals and objectives are consistent with the 10-year priorities 
and long-term improvements laid out in the plan which included operations, planning, 
policy and procedures, new technology, and capital and infrastructure priorities. 

As part of this progress report, the goals, objectives and policies were assessed.  Table 2-1 
presents the goals and objectives for the TDP major update and additional columns in the 
table document were added to illustrate if the measure was achieved or is “in progress” 
and implemented over time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Table 2-1:  Polk TDP Goals and Objectives 

Goals/ 
Objectives 

Description Implemented 
(Yes/No) 

Assessment 

Goal Develop and maintain a public transportation system to provide 
safe travel for all users which supports livable communities and 
economic activity. 

 
Ongoing 

The overall Goal and Objectives is an ongoing process.  Steps 
towards achieving these objectives have been summarized in 
this Progress Report in Section 2, Progress Report. 

Safety 
Objective 

Safe and secure travel conditions on public transportation.  
Ongoing 

LAMTD  has a very thorough, comprehensive training program 
for bus operators to ensure that riders enjoy safe and secure 
travel conditions on the public transportation system.  Staff is 
also trained to assist in emergency response situations. All 
vehicles are maintained and serviced to the highest standards to 
ensure safety. 

Livability 
Objective 

Provide travel options for persons of all ages and abilities.  
Ongoing 

Neighborhood mobility audits & the Senior Mobility Audits have 
identified connectivity and potential improvements to provide 
persons of all ages to access public transportation.  The UAPs 
illustrate LAMTD’s efforts to go above & beyond to provide 
students will easy access to transit.  The Bus Pass Program  for 
the transportation disadvantaged is very successful with regular 
outreach to senior communities. 

Mobility 
Objective 

Provide transportation options for intercity and local travel.  
In progress 

Out of the 17 municipalities in Polk County (which is over 2,010 
sq. miles), LAMTD provides service to 16 of them.  Also, Routes 
416 & 427 in northeast Polk County allows riders to access 
regional transit with the Lynx system.  With the opening of the 
Park and Ride on US 98 N & I-4, LAMTD has partnered with 
Mega Bus, which provides regional connections to the riders. 

Economic 
Objective 

Provide transportation infrastructure and services that support 
economic vitality and job creation. 

 
Ongoing 

LAMTD is constantly looking at “out of the box” travel options, 
which is illustrated by the Universal Access Program 
Agreements.  They also do extensive public 
outreach/presentations in the community to educate on the 
need for and the value of public transportation.  LAMTD 
implemented the Transit Scoring Index to monitor route 
productivity & make adjustments when/where necessary to 
ensure cost efficiency. 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 10 

Section 3:  Phased Implementation and Financial Plans 
 

The purpose of My Ride, Polk Transit Development Plan FY 2017-2026, is to provide direction for 
transit service improvements in Polk County over the next 10 years.  This direction was developed 
through extensive public outreach and consideration of all modes of transportation options, 
resulting in a 10-year phased implementation plan.  Progress on the implementation of service 
improvements and expansion in the 10-year plan, along with an updated implementation and 
financial plan, is included in this section. 

 In the major update of the My Ride TDP document, the following priorities were listed for 
operations and capital and infrastructure: 

 OPERATIONS 

 Maximize existing service efficiency 
In a fiscally constrained transit environment, maximizing existing service efficiency is a high 
priority.  Service efficiency includes: 

o Coordinated vehicle maintenance 
o Consolidated administration and maintenance activities, and 
o Coordinated contracting for fuel and maintenance supplies and activities. 

 Implement service improvements 
Service improvements were also identified as priorities for implementation.  Service 
improvements include: 

o Improvements to existing service frequency (headways) 
o Extended weekday service hours (span), and 
o Additional weekend service (either Saturday or Sunday). 

 Service expansion 
Service expansion is a priority for implementation for the 10-year needs plan.  Service 
expansion includes: 

o New routes operating in county activity centers with no existing service, and 
o A proposed feeder route to the future Poinciana SunRail Station. 

CAPITAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

 Downtown Lakeland Intermodal Center 
 Easts Polk Maintenance Facility 
 Park and Ride Facilities 
 Vehicle expansion and replacement 
 IT and Technology 

As indicated in Section 2 of this report, progress has been made in the implementation of the 10-
year implementation plan.  During the development of the major update to the TDP last year, efforts 
were still ongoing regarding the consolidation of transit services from the Polk County Board of 
County Commissioners to LAMTD.   The transfer of capital equipment and negotiating contracts has 
finally been completed, with the Polk BOCC actively participating in the funding of transit services. 

 

 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 11 

The following chart 3-1 depicts the original Implementation Plan contained in the FY 2017-
FY2026 TDP major update. 

Table 3-1 Original Service Implementation Plan 

 
 

Service Type/Mode 

 
 

Description 

Operating Characteristics 

Frequency 
(Weekday) 

Service Span 
(Weekday) 

Days of 
Service 

FY 2017 and FY 2018     

Route 1/101 Florida Ave Corridor Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

30 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 3/301 Lakeland Hills Corridor Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 10 Circulator Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 12 Lakeland to WH Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 14 Combee/Edgewood Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

120 mins 7:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 15 (N/S) 
Kathleen/Providence/Harden 

Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 15 (E/W) Winter Haven/Haines City Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:45 AM - 7:00 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 22XL Bartow Express Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:55 AM - 5:10 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 22XW Winter Haven/Bartow Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:45 AM - 7:00 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 25 Bartow/Fort Meade Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:45 AM - 5:45 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 27X Dundee/Eagle Ridge Mall Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:00 AM - 7:05 AM Mon - Fri 

Route 30 Legoland Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 7:10 PM Mon - Sun 

Route 32/33 South Fl/Carter Rd. Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 7:41 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 35 Bartow/Lake Wales Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

120 mins 6:10 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 39 Bradley Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

5 hrs 6:45 AM - 5:35 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 40/44 Winter Haven Southside Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:45 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 45 George Jenkins/Swindell Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 46 10th/Wabash/Ariana Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 5:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 47 Duff Rd. Shuttle Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 8:15 AM - 5:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 50 Auburndale Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:45 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 58 College Connector Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:30 AM - 4:40 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 58X Airside Express Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

15 mins 7:00 AM - 1:00 AM Mon - Fri 

Route 59X County Line Express Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 60 Winter Haven Northeast Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 416 Poinciana/Haines City LYNX Maintain Existing Fixed 150 mins 10:40 AM - 7:00 Mon - Fri 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 12 

 
 

Service Type/Mode 

 
 

Description 

Operating Characteristics 

Frequency 
(Weekday) 

Service Span 
(Weekday) 

Days of 
Service 

Route Service PM 

Route 427 US 27/Haines City LYNX Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

120 mins 6:25 AM - 7:12 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 603 Neighborlink Line LYNX Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 6:05 AM - 6:15 PM Mon - Fri 

ADA Paratransit Service Maintain Existing ADA 
Paratransit Service 

n/a 6:00 AM – 6:30 PM Mon - Sat 

FY 2019     

Route 12 Lakeland to WH 

Increase Frequency 

30 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Sat 
Increase Hours of 

Service 
Add Weekend Service 

FY 2020     

Route 1/101 Florida Ave Corridor 

Increase Frequency 

15 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Sun 
Increase Hours of 

Service 
Add Weekend Service 

FY 2021     

Route 14 Combee/Edgewood 
 

Increase Frequency  
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

Add Weekend Service 

Route 15 Winter Haven - Haines City 

Increase Frequency 

 
60 mins 

 
5:45 AM - 7:35 PM 

 
Mon - Sun 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

Add Weekend Service 

 
Route 22XL Bartow Express 
 

Increase Frequency 

30 mins 5:55 AM – 7:10 PM Mon - Sat 
Increase Hours of 

Service 
Add Weekend Service 

SunRail Feeder Winter Haven to Poinciana Add New Service 30 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Fri 

FY 2022     
 
Route 30 Legoland 

Increase Frequency  
30 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sun 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

Route 58 College Connector Increase Frequency 30 mins 6:30 AM - 4:40 PM Mon - Fri 

 
Route 427 US 27/Haines City LYNX 

Increase Frequency  
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

Add Weekend Service 

FY 2023     

Polk City to Winter Haven Add New Service 60 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 22XW Winter Haven/Bartow 

Increase Frequency 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Sun 
Increase Hours of 

Service 
Add Weekend Service 

FY 2024     



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 13 

 
 

Service Type/Mode 

 
 

Description 

Operating Characteristics 

Frequency 
(Weekday) 

Service Span 
(Weekday) 

Days of 
Service 

 
Route 60 Winter Haven Northeast 

Increase Frequency  
30 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sun 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

Add Weekend Service 

FY 2025     
 
Route 15 Kathleen/Providence/Harden 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

 
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Add Weekend Service 

FY 2026     
 
Route 3/301 Lakeland Hills Corridor 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

 
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Add Weekend Service 

 
Route 32/33 South Fl/Carter Rd. 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

 
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Add Weekend Service 

 

The original Service Implementation Plan recommended maintaining existing service in FY 
2017 and FY 2018, with the first improvement in FY 2019.  The transit agency has been 
able to maintain existing transit services within their funding limitations.  Until funding is 
identified to expand services, all resources have gone towards maintaining the areas 
currently served.  Therefore, the Service Implementation Plan has been adjusted to move 
everything out one year, which adds the tenth year to the TDP Progress Report.  The 
adjusted Service Implementation Plan follows in Chart 3-2. 

 

Table 3-2 REVISED SERVICE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

 
 

Service Type/Mode 

 
 

Description 

Operating Characteristics 

Frequency 
(Weekday) 

Service Span 
(Weekday) 

Days of 
Service 

FY 2018 and FY 2019     

Route 1/101 Florida Ave Corridor Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

30 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 3/301 Lakeland Hills Corridor Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 10 Circulator Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 12 Lakeland to WH Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 14 Combee/Edgewood Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

120 mins 7:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 15 (N/S) 
Kathleen/Providence/Harden 

Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 15 (E/W) Winter Haven/Haines City Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:45 AM - 7:00 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 22XL Bartow Express Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:55 AM - 5:10 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 22XW Winter Haven/Bartow Maintain Existing Fixed 90 mins 5:45 AM - 7:00 PM Mon - Sat 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 14 

 
 

Service Type/Mode 

 
 

Description 

Operating Characteristics 

Frequency 
(Weekday) 

Service Span 
(Weekday) 

Days of 
Service 

Route Service 

Route 25 Bartow/Fort Meade Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:45 AM - 5:45 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 27X Dundee/Eagle Ridge Mall Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:00 AM - 7:05 AM Mon - Fri 

Route 30 Legoland Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 7:10 PM Mon - Sun 

Route 32/33 South Fl/Carter Rd. Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 7:41 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 35 Bartow/Lake Wales Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

120 mins 6:10 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 39 Bradley Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

5 hrs 6:45 AM - 5:35 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 40/44 Winter Haven Southside Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:45 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 45 George Jenkins/Swindell Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 46 10th/Wabash/Ariana Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 5:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 47 Duff Rd. Shuttle Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 8:15 AM - 5:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 50 Auburndale Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 5:45 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 58 College Connector Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:30 AM - 4:40 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 58X Airside Express Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

15 mins 7:00 AM - 1:00 AM Mon - Fri 

Route 59X County Line Express Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 6:05 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 60 Winter Haven Northeast Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 7:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 416 Poinciana/Haines City LYNX Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

150 mins 10:40 AM - 7:00 
PM 

Mon - Fri 

Route 427 US 27/Haines City LYNX Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

120 mins 6:25 AM - 7:12 PM Mon - Fri 

Route 603 Neighborlink Line LYNX Maintain Existing Fixed 
Route Service 

90 mins 6:05 AM - 6:15 PM Mon - Fri 

ADA Paratransit Service Maintain Existing ADA 
Paratransit Service 

n/a 6:00 AM – 6:30 PM Mon - Sat 

FY 2020     

Route 12 Lakeland to WH 

Increase Frequency 

30 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Sat 
Increase Hours of 

Service 
Add Weekend Service 

FY 2021     

Route 1/101 Florida Ave Corridor 

Increase Frequency 

15 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Sun 
Increase Hours of 

Service 
Add Weekend Service 

FY 2022     

Route 14 Combee/Edgewood 
 

Increase Frequency  
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Increase Hours of 
Service 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 15 

 
 

Service Type/Mode 

 
 

Description 

Operating Characteristics 

Frequency 
(Weekday) 

Service Span 
(Weekday) 

Days of 
Service 

Add Weekend Service 

Route 15 Winter Haven - Haines City 

Increase Frequency 

 
60 mins 

 
5:45 AM - 7:35 PM 

 
Mon - Sun 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

Add Weekend Service 

 
Route 22XL Bartow Express 
 

Increase Frequency 

30 mins 5:55 AM – 7:10 PM Mon - Sat 
Increase Hours of 

Service 
Add Weekend Service 

SunRail Feeder Winter Haven to Poinciana Add New Service 30 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Fri 

FY 2023     
 
Route 30 Legoland 

Increase Frequency  
30 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sun 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

Route 58 College Connector Increase Frequency 30 mins 6:30 AM - 4:40 PM Mon - Fri 

 
Route 427 US 27/Haines City LYNX 

Increase Frequency  
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

Add Weekend Service 

FY 2024     

Polk City to Winter Haven Add New Service 60 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Sat 

Route 22XW Winter Haven/Bartow 

Increase Frequency 

60 mins 6:15 AM - 8:05 PM Mon - Sun 
Increase Hours of 

Service 
Add Weekend Service 

FY 2025     
 
Route 60 Winter Haven Northeast 

Increase Frequency  
30 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sun 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

Add Weekend Service 

FY 2026     
 
Route 15 Kathleen/Providence/Harden 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

 
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Add Weekend Service 

FY 2027     

 
Route 3/301 Lakeland Hills Corridor 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

 
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Add Weekend Service 

 
Route 32/33 South Fl/Carter Rd. 

Increase Hours of 
Service 

 
60 mins 

 
6:15 AM - 8:05 PM 

 
Mon - Sat 

Add Weekend Service 

 

With all improvements being moved out a year throughout the revised Service 
Implementation Plan, there are no new recommendations or for the new tenth year of the 
updated plan.  However, In addition to continuing to implement capital and operating 



 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 16 

projects that move the Agency closer to meeting its Goals and Objectives, scheduled 
upgrades and improvements under new technology (ITS) include: 

 Working with AVAIL to complete a prototype with Wi Fi, USB Charging, Pre-Trip on 
MDT, upgrade Modem from 3G to 4G technology, Video Surveillance with wireless 
connection and bus health monitoring. 

 Working with AVAIL to implement remote loading of value on Smart Cards through 
Internet and fare payment with Smart Phones.   

 

TEN-YEAR MY RIDE TDP FINANCIAL PLAN 

Capital and operating costs in this progress report area consistent with the information and 
assumptions prepared for the My Ride TDP major update.  All key assumptions are 
documented in the 2017 major update report.  Cost estimates are based on a variety of 
data, including professional experience, recent procurements, peer agency costs, NTD data, 
trend information and analysis, fleet planning, and discussions with Transit Management 
staff.  Revenue projections take into account capital and operating revenue from several 
sources, including state and federal grants, the District’s Ad Valorem tax, allocated county 
general fund, passenger fares, and advertising sales. 

Every year, LAMTD operates using a fiscally constrained, balanced budget to provide a 
basic level of transit service for Polk County.  The updated 10-year Financial Plan for this 
TDP Progress Report is shown in Tables 3-3 and 3-4 on the next two pages of this report.  
As stated above with respect to the revised Service Implementation Plan, the dates on year 
of expense have been moved out a year to align with the revised Implementation Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 

My Ride 2018 Progress Report 19 

CONCLUSION 

This fiscal year has been a challenging yet rewarding year for public transportation in Polk 
County.  This year saw the start of three new routes to the system (Lakeland, Winter Haven, 
Rural), and the implementation of a new fare box system utilizing Smart Card technologies.  
As the transition to one transit system completed its second year, there are still issues that 
need to be addressed, such as the cost of unifying the branding on all of the vehicles.  This 
process will take time to complete and all new buses are receiving the updated logo.   

A new endeavor for the District is the revamp of the “fair share” system with the 
municipalities through Polk County.  The District identified that the fair share Agreements 
grossly understated the proportion of cost required to provide quality service to each 
municipality in the Winter Haven urbanized area.  A goal of 20 percent of the total cost of 
providing services will be redistributed to the municipalities over a three-year period with 
a gradual increase to the required FTA 50% local match. 

Over the past year, LAMTD continued to make strides towards implementing the priorities 
with respect to the adopted 10-year Major TDP Update, My Ride, adopted in 2017.   

The 10-year TDP was created to ensure that limited public funds are being allocated in the 
most efficient way possible and to ensure that investment is still reflective of the values of 
the people of Polk County.  Continued diligence and service optimization efforts ensure that 
LAMTD continues to provide the highest possible value to the county taxpayers/residents, 
and visitors.  The phased Implementation Plan will hopefully assist the agency in achieving 
those objectives.  As transit services in Polk County are expanded in a phased, measured, 
incremental, and cost effective approach, the full vision for Polk County and LAMTD can be 
achieved over time, enhancing economic development and the agency’s overall value to the 
community. 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 8, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM 7a 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Public Purpose Conveyance to Citrus Connection 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby 
 
Recommended  
Action: Approval 
 
 
 
Summary: Public Purpose Conveyance to Citrus Connection. As this 

is a Public Purpose conveyance, FDOT will not require 
any funds, Citrus Connection is only responsible for the 
title search and recording fees. 

  
  
 
 
Attachments: Title Search 
  
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 8, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM 7b 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Agreement between the district and the City of 

Lakeland for Services 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby 
 
Recommended  
Action: Approval 
 
 
 
Summary: A new agreement with the City of Lakeland for the 

transit services. 
  
  
 
 
Attachments: Agreement 
  
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 8, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM 7c 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Service agreement with Southeastern University 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby 
 
Recommended  
Action: Approval 
 
 
 
Summary: A universal access program with Southeastern 

University. 
  
  
 
 
Attachments: Agreement 
  
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 8, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM 8a 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Oct 1, 2018 Proposed Route Changes 
 
Presenter: Bill Knieriem 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
 
 
Summary: We are proposing the following route changes to begin 

Oct 1, 2018. After analyzing the TSI data and speaking 
with passenger and operators, we are proposing the 
following route changes to take effect Monday Oct 1, 
2018. We will be holding workshops at different 
locations and will present the results at a Public hearing 
to be held at the next board meeting in September. 

  
  
 
 
Attachments: Proposed route maps 
  
 
 



Proposed Route Changes
for Lakeland and Winter Haven

Changes scheduled to take effect Monday Oct 1, 2018



Route 15WH – adding more of the downtown area, leaving Hinson 
Plaza 22nd St s to Grace Ave E to 10th St s to s6th St by the pool 
and park, and back to Hwy 17



Route 60 – Elimination of Saturday service



Route 35 – Reduced service to Frostproof, northbound only, 
eliminate Saturday Service to Frostproof, add South County 
Jail M-Sat



Route 3 – add Watson Clinic outbound 8:45 to 
2:45 runs only



Route 10 – Eliminate Lake Hollingsworth Loop, add 98S to 
Edgewood to Commerce Pt Dr, Add S Lake Parker to 
Memorial to Ingraham inbound



Route 14 – Add S Lake Parker to Memorial to 
Ingraham



Route 15 – Add Griffin Rd to 98 to Mall, add Lk Wire 
to MLK (In and Out bound), Eliminate Fla Ave (In and 
Out bound)



Route 33 – add Walmart Imperial as a start 
and end point



Route 59X – Elimination of Route



Route 45 – Eliminate The Pines, add  Clark Rd 
to Swindell to County Line to Amazon to Allen 
K Breed



Route 46  - Eliminate Watson Clinic, add MLK to 10th to 
Galloway to The Pines, add Olive St to Central to Highlands 
to Wabash. Eliminate Beacon, Lincoln and Ariana 



Route 47 – eliminate Griffin Rd, eliminate 
Sleepy Hill to Kathleen (salvation Army). Add 
Lakeland Park Center in and outbound



Route 58 – add Beacon to Lincoln to Ariana to Sikes 
(Eastbound Only). Add Lake Hollingsworth (Eastbound 
Only) Start first run from PSC at 7:05



Route 61 – Add Sleepy Hill to Kathleen 
(Salvation Army, Adds 4 additional trips)
to Mall Hill to Mall



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 8, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM 9a 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Reclassification of Terminal Coordinators to 

Terminal Safety Officers 
 
Presenter: Steve Schaible & Bill Knieriem 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
 
 
Summary: Recently Citrus Connection has added Customer Service 

Representatives (CSR) to the Lakeland and Winter 
Haven Terminals. The CSRs are onsite with Citrus 
Connection Terminal Coordinators along with a contract 
Security Guard at each terminal. Having the additional 
customer service care has raised the question of the need 
for continued contract security services. Current contract 
security services provide unarmed security eight (8) 
hours a day M-F and work the same schedule as 
Terminal Coordinators. The terminal contract security 
services duties consist of reminding riders of terminal 
rules, observe and report and providing information for 
issuing trespass notices.  

 
Like contract security, Terminal Coordinators already 
manage behaviors at the terminal, remind riders of rules, 
assist with issuing trespass notices and write incident 
reports. In addition, Terminal Coordinators provide 
customer service support which contract security does 
not provide.  

 
Reclassifying Terminal Coordinators to Terminal Safety 
Officers (TSOs) will blend Terminal Coordinator duties 



AGENDA ITEM #9a – CONT. 

LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting – May 14, 2014 
 

 
 

with basic security functions.  Discontinuing contract 
security services and providing security (class “D” 
License) training to Terminal Coordinators along with an 
identifying uniform, will present an annual cost savings 
of $40,000.     

  
  
 
 
Attachments: Terminal Security Officer (TSO) job description 
  
 
 



JOB DESCRIPTION 

JOB TITLE: Terminal Security Officer (TSO) 
Department: Operations Primary 
Reports To: Director of Operations; Dotted line to RISK Department  
FLSA Status: Non-exempt; 
 
SUMMARY: 
This position is responsible for assuring safe, reliable, and expert transportation and security to the 
community at large, achieving such through Operator education and Security training. 
This position primarily supports the basic service functions of the Operations department and Risk 
department secondary. 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 

1. Monitor on-time performance at the Transit Center. 
2. Addresses and diffuses employee and/or passenger disputes at the Transit Center. 
3. Assists in reporting of accidents/incidents at the Transit Center. 
4. Responsible for coordinating activities at downtown terminal. 
5. Communicates route changes, detours and schedule changes to operator terminal. 
6. Responsible for dealing with passengers and the public with courtesy and patience. 
7. Assists Fixed Route and Operations as necessary. 
8. Responsible for assisting impaired passengers. 
9. Responsible for replenishment of route maps at the Transit Center 
10. Adhere to Terminal Post Orders 
11. Other duties as assigned. 

 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES: This position has no supervisory responsibilities.  
 
MINIMUM JOB REQUIREMENTS: 
High school diploma or G.E.D required. One (1) year of related field experience as a bus operator, 
preferably in a public transportation setting. An equivalent combination of education and experience 
that is determined to be directly related to the specific requirements may be substituted. Must complete 
accredited training for a Security “D” License. Bi-lingual Spanish desirable but not required. 
 
OTHER CERTIFICATES/LICENSES: 
Must have valid CDL Class "B" license with (P) Passenger Endorsement and Airbrakes. 
Prefer Security “D” License.  
 
KNOWLEDGE SKILLS AND ABILITIES REQUIRED: 
Knowledge of traffic laws and regulations and ability to operate assigned equipment in a safe manner.  
Ability to continually deal with the public in a courteous and pleasant manner.  
Diffuse difficult situations and not antagonize riders, public or employees. Understand when a situation 
will need to escalate to EMS, Fire Department or Law Enforcement and initiate that contact.  
Ability to document and process onsite reports immediately and maintain required records. 



Knowledge of the geography of the county and bus routes. 
Knowledge of general security practices. 
Skill in safely operating a bus or other vehicle in a variety of weather and traffic conditions: 
Ability to work under pressure; ability to multi-task. Strong verbal and written communication skills. 
Strong interpersonal and conflict resolution skills. 
PC literate, basic skills in Microsoft Office Suite and Internet research. 
Ability to organize and prioritize work and meet deadlines. 
Must be a self-starter and able to work independently. 
Ability to establish effective working relationships with co-workers, various County and City 
employees, customers, and the public. 
Uses sound, independent judgment in daily work activities and exercises discretion; has strong ethical 
standards. 
 
WORKING ENVIRONMENT and PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 
The work environment and physical demands characteristics described here are representative of 
those an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Being visible at the 
terminal and attentive. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform these essential functions. 
 
This job is usually performed primarily in an outdoor environment with temperature extremes; there is 
limited time on a bus. 
 
It may include the need to lift up to 25 lbs. infrequently. 
I have read, understand and agree to fulfill the requirements of the above job description and have been 
provided a copy. 
 
Employee Signature:___________________________   DATE: ______________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________________________ 
 
The statements contained herein reflect general details as necessary to describe the essential functions 
of this job, the level of knowledge, skills typically required and the scope of responsibility, but should 
not be considered an all-inclusive listing of work requirements. 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 08, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM 10a 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Agency Updates  
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Oral presentation 
  
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 08, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM 11a 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: July calendar 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Review and summary of events taken place in June. 
  
 
 





LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 8, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM 11b 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Ridership Report 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, ED 
 
Recommended  
Action: Information only 
 
 
 
Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system 

including LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand 
Response through June 30, 2018 

  
  
 
 
Attachments: Ridership Report. 
  
 
 



UAP Ridership Totals 2018 LAMTD WHAT Total
June 13,015                       7,285                     20,300                 

July 13,373                       6,742                     20,115                 

UAP Ridership 2018 LAMTD WHAT Total
Polk State College

June 1,190                         735                        1,925                    

July 1,341                         834                        2,175                    

LEGOLAND

June 250                            1,669                     1,919                    

July 279                            1,591                     1,870                    

South Eastern University

June 122                            22                          144                       

July 122                            26                          148                       

COLTS

June 376                            236                        612                       

July 387                            162                        549                       

Veterans

June 3,369                         1,307                     4,676                    

July 3,578                         1,283                     4,861                    

Southern Technical College

June 153                            203                        356                       

July 92                               226                        318                       

Central Florida Healthcare

June 1,496                         644                        2,140                    

July 1,623                         607                        2,230                    

New Beginnings High School

June 414                            762                        1,176                    

July 244                            377                        621                       

LDDA

June 50                               ‐                             50                         

July 66                               1                            67                         

PACE

June 350                            77                          427                       

July 324                            62                          386                       

Peace River

June 2,383                         526                        2,909                    

July 2,360                         530                        2,890                    

Summer of Safety

June 2,862                         1,104                     3,966                    

July 2,957                         1,043                     4,000                    













LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: AUGUST 08, 2018  
AGENDA ITEM#12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Other Business 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended  
Action: TBD 
 
Summary: TBD 
  
 
 


	AGENDA
	1 - Approval of Minutes
	Board Minutes Jul 11, 2018
	Directors:
	Call to Order
	Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	Agenda Item #7 – Quarterly Ridership Report / Bill Knieriem
	TSI ridership data for first and second qtrs of 2018 for the periods of Jan-Mar and Apr -June.
	(see attached)
	Agenda Item #8 – Executive Director Report / Tom Phillips
	a. Agency Update(s)
	a. Thankful for the Ledger and their comments with Citrus Connections and Eagle Lake
	b. Continue with Citrus Connections TV
	c. Thanked Joe Cheney for looking into new buses, possible vendors coming later this month.
	d. Thanked the Sales group for coming through with Fort Mead
	e. Introduced James Phillips, no relation, as the new executive assistant point of contact
	f. T Bardic Resignation
	g. Publix continues to ask for Citrus Connections to remove/relocate the stop in from of the Lake Miriam complex
	Agenda Item #10 – Other Business

	2 - Public Comments
	3 - GEM Award
	4- Colton Larson Feature
	5a - BOD Agenda Item
	5a - BOD Agenda Attachments
	5b - FTA 5339 BBF 2018
	5b- Photos for Bus Facilities Application
	IMG_1382
	IMG_1384
	IMG_1397
	IMG_1404

	5b - RESOLUTION
	5c- LAMTD Agenda ITEM FS  -JUNE2018
	5c- Financial Report JUNE2018
	5c- Jun18 FY-17-18
	Financials

	5d- LAMTD Agenda ITEM  -JUNE2018
	5d- LAMTD pcts Agenda ITEM  -JUNE2018
	5d- Board Meeting PCTS - June 2018
	5e- BOD agenda Item - Proposed Operating  Capital Budget
	5e- PPT slide attachments
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	6- Agenda Item 2018 TDP Progress Report
	6- 2018 Polk TDP Progress Report DRAFT
	7a- Public Purpose Conveyance to Citrus Connection agenda item
	7b- Agreement between the district and the City of Lakeland for Services agenda item
	7c- Service agreement with Southeastern University agenda item
	8a- Proposed Route Changes
	8a- Proposed Route Changes
	Proposed Route Changes�for Lakeland and Winter Haven
	Route 15WH – adding more of the downtown area, leaving Hinson Plaza 22nd St s to Grace Ave E to 10th St s to s6th St by the pool and park, and back to Hwy 17�
	Route 60 – Elimination of Saturday service�
	Route 3 – add Watson Clinic outbound 8:45 to 2:45 runs only�
	Route 10 – Eliminate Lake Hollingsworth Loop, add 98S to Edgewood to Commerce Pt Dr, Add S Lake Parker to Memorial to Ingraham inbound�
	Route 14 – Add S Lake Parker to Memorial to Ingraham�
	Route 15 – Add Griffin Rd to 98 to Mall, add Lk Wire to MLK (In and Out bound), Eliminate Fla Ave (In and Out bound)�
	Route 33 – add Walmart Imperial as a start and end point�
	Route 59X – Elimination of Route�
	Route 45 – Eliminate The Pines, add  Clark Rd to Swindell to County Line to Amazon to Allen K Breed�
	Route 46  - Eliminate Watson Clinic, add MLK to 10th to Galloway to The Pines, add Olive St to Central to Highlands to Wabash. Eliminate Beacon, Lincoln and Ariana �
	Route 47 – eliminate Griffin Rd, eliminate Sleepy Hill to Kathleen (salvation Army). Add Lakeland Park Center in and outbound�
	Route 58 – add Beacon to Lincoln to Ariana to Sikes (Eastbound Only). Add Lake Hollingsworth (Eastbound Only) Start first run from PSC at 7:05�
	Route 61 – Add Sleepy Hill to Kathleen (Salvation Army, Adds 4 additional trips)� to Mall Hill to Mall

	9a- Reclassification of Terminal Coordinators to Terminal Safety Officers
	9a- Terminal Security Officer
	10a - BOD Agenda Item Agency Items
	11a - BOD Agenda Item July calendar
	11a- July Calendar
	11b - Agenda Item 8-8-18
	11b- UAP Ridership Spreadsheet as of 8.3.18
	11b - Ridership Report
	12 - BOD Agenda Item Other business
	ADPB851.tmp
	Proposed Route Changes�for Lakeland and Winter Haven
	Route 15WH – adding more of the downtown area, leaving Hinson Plaza 22nd St s to Grace Ave E to 10th St s to s6th St by the pool and park, and back to Hwy 17�
	Route 60 – Elimination of Saturday service�
	Slide Number 4
	Route 3 – add Watson Clinic outbound 8:45 to 2:45 runs only�
	Route 10 – Eliminate Lake Hollingsworth Loop, add 98S to Edgewood to Commerce Pt Dr, Add S Lake Parker to Memorial to Ingraham inbound�
	Route 14 – Add S Lake Parker to Memorial to Ingraham�
	Route 15 – Add Griffin Rd to 98 to Mall, add Lk Wire to MLK (In and Out bound), Eliminate Fla Ave (In and Out bound)�
	Route 33 – add Walmart Imperial as a start and end point�
	Route 59X – Elimination of Route�
	Route 45 – Eliminate The Pines, add  Clark Rd to Swindell to County Line to Amazon to Allen K Breed�
	Route 46  - Eliminate Watson Clinic, add MLK to 10th to Galloway to The Pines, add Olive St to Central to Highlands to Wabash. Eliminate Beacon, Lincoln and Ariana �
	Route 47 – eliminate Griffin Rd, eliminate Sleepy Hill to Kathleen (salvation Army). Add Lakeland Park Center in and outbound�
	Route 58 – add Beacon to Lincoln to Ariana to Sikes (Eastbound Only). Add Lake Hollingsworth (Eastbound Only) Start first run from PSC at 7:05�
	Route 61 – Add Sleepy Hill to Kathleen (Salvation Army, Adds 4 additional trips)� to Mall Hill to Mall




